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          1  COMMITTEE ON HEALTH

          2                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA: Good morning.  My

          3  name is Joel Rivera, I'm the Chair of the Health

          4  Committee.  For many years, the City Council has

          5  been concerned about children's access to health

          6  insurance and quality healthcare.  Governor Spitzer

          7  recently announced that he intends to provide all

          8  children in the State with access to health

          9  insurance.  It is important that we in this City

         10  continue to work hard to ensure that we enroll all

         11  those who are eligible for coverage.

         12                 We are here today to talk about what

         13  the Bloomberg Administration has been doing to help

         14  get more children enrolled in health insurance

         15  programs.  Recent estimates place the number of

         16  uninsured children in New York City at a quarter of

         17  a million. These children do not receive adequate

         18  healthcare.  They are less likely to see a doctor

         19  regularly, more likely to use emergency rooms and

         20  more likely to have unmet healthcare needs.

         21                 Without adequate healthcare, these

         22  children develop problems that could have been

         23  prevented or corrected early, but instead, develop

         24  into serious conditions.  Such conditions can effect

         25  the ability to attend school regularly, participate
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          2  in physical activities and develop appropriate

          3  social and emotional skills.

          4                 The lack of insurance is not just a

          5  problem for these children and their families.  It

          6  is a burden on this City's healthcare system and on

          7  its taxpayers.  Each year, our hospitals spend

          8  billions of dollars treating the uninsured.  Some of

          9  this expense could have undoubtedly have been

         10  prevented if these individuals had received regular

         11  preventative care.

         12                 Today we hope to hear about the

         13  efforts of the Bloomberg Administration and others

         14  to make families aware of available insurance

         15  coverage, to enroll children in programs and to make

         16  sure that those children stay enrolled.

         17                 Before we start with the testimony,

         18  I'm going to introduce my colleagues.  To my far

         19  left, we have Rosie Mendez, Council Member from

         20  Manhattan and we have Council Member Inez Dickens,

         21  also from Manhattan.  First to testify will be

         22  Marjorie Cadogan, hopefully I didn't butcher your

         23  last name and also with her with be Joyce Weinstein,

         24  the Assistant Commissioner of Health Insurance

         25  Access, Department of Health and Mental Hygiene.
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          2                 Thank you very much, ladies.  You may

          3  flip a coin to determine who goes first.  I hear

          4  Joyce is not going to give testimony, she's just

          5  going to answer questions, so I guess it's up to

          6  you.

          7                 MS. CADOGAN: I think it's up to me.

          8  Thank you very much, Chairman.  Good morning,

          9  Chairman Rivera, Council Members, staff.  I am

         10  Marjorie Cadogan, Executive Deputy Commissioner of

         11  the Human Resources Administration's Office of

         12  Citywide Health Insurance Access.  Thank you for the

         13  opportunity to speak before you today about the

         14  City's efforts to ensure that all of its children

         15  have access to healthcare.  With me is Assistant

         16  Commissioner Joyce Weinstein, from the Bureau of

         17  Healthcare Improvement of the Department of Health

         18  and Mental Hygiene.

         19                 Let me begin by stating how much we

         20  value the Council's interest in health insurance

         21  coverage for children.  The challenge of enabling

         22  all children to have and keep health insurance

         23  coverage is a critical issue facing our City, State

         24  and nation.  Many parents are not aware of the free

         25  or low- cost public health insurance programs

                                                            6

          1  COMMITTEE ON HEALTH

          2  available for their children.  They often cannot

          3  afford the cost of health insurance premiums and

          4  co-payments given the importance of other monetary

          5  demands in their lives. Other parents fear that

          6  participation in public health insurance for

          7  children will not enable them to gain residency in

          8  the United States.

          9                 During the Bloomberg Administration,

         10  the concerted effort of the City and its partners to

         11  overcome these and other barriers has resulted in

         12  significant decreases in the number uninsured

         13  children and adults.  The main reason for this

         14  improvement is that public health insurance

         15  enrollment has grown 35% over the past five years.

         16  This administration has enrolled nearly 900,000

         17  people in public health insurance.  As of November

         18  2006, more than 2.5 million New York City residents

         19  are covered by public health insurance programs

         20  administered by HRA.  Over 50% of New York City's

         21  children have public health insurance coverage, with

         22  Medicaid insuring over 1 million and CHP B and

         23  additional 165,000.

         24                 While the rest of New York State and

         25  the nation experienced decreases in health insurance
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          2  coverage, New York City experienced steady

          3  increases.  According to the latest report from the

          4  United Hospital Fund, the number of uninsured

          5  children declined from 289,000 in 2002- 03 to

          6  240,000 in 2003- 04 in New York City. The decline

          7  for adults during this same time period was from 1.4

          8  million to 1.26 million.

          9                 Additionally, while employer

         10  sponsored health insurance has decreased in the rest

         11  of the State and across the country, New York City

         12  has experienced an increase in the proportion of

         13  children insured through employer sponsored coverage

         14  from 39% in 2003- 03 to 41% in 2003- 04.  HRA/OCHIA

         15  will continue its efforts to increase employer-based

         16  coverage by promoting the more affordable options

         17  that exist for the City's small businesses and

         18  working individuals- namely, HealthPass, Healthy NY,

         19  LIA Health Alliance, Brooklyn HealthWorks, Staten

         20  Island Wrap and Freelancers Union.  I have brought

         21  copies of HRA/OCHIA's Guide to Health Insurance

         22  Options for New York City's Small Businesses, Sole

         23  Proprietors and Working Individuals, which is

         24  available on your table, which includes information

         25  about these options.  Enrollment in these options
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          2  increased by more than 10,000 in 2006.  In addition

          3  to partnerships with the Department of Small

          4  Business Services and a multitude of business

          5  organizations, we plan on further promoting these

          6  options through a continuing education seminar, co-

          7  sponsored with City University's College of Staten

          8  Island, for more than 100 insurance brokers on

          9  January 24th.

         10                 Despite these positive developments,

         11  there are still approximately 240,000 children

         12  without insurance.  An estimated 200,000 of these

         13  are eligible for public health insurance programs

         14  but are not enrolled in them.  The City is committed

         15  to enrolling these children.

         16                 Under the leadership of Mayor

         17  Bloomberg, many City initiatives have furthered our

         18  success in expanding coverage for children.  Every

         19  day, 200 to 350 infants born to Medicaid eligible

         20  mothers are automatically provided Medicaid coverage

         21  by a match process between the Department of Health

         22  and Mental Hygiene's Vital Statistics and the New

         23  York State Welfare Management System.  In addition

         24  to ensuring that these children receive coverage

         25  from the date of their birth, including automatic

                                                            9

          1  COMMITTEE ON HEALTH

          2  enrollment in a managed care plan where deemed

          3  appropriate, the state has determined that the

          4  process satisfies the new Deficit Reduction Act

          5  requirements for verification of citizenship, even

          6  when the mother's immigration status is not

          7  documented.  The process is based upon a design

          8  developed by the State Department of Health in

          9  collaboration with HRA.

         10                 At day care resource centers, pre-

         11  school programs, elementary, middle and high

         12  schools, the Administration for Children's Services,

         13  the Department of Education and the Department for

         14  Youth and Community Development provide locations

         15  throughout the City where parents can apply for

         16  health insurance for their children and themselves

         17  during the school year.  These efforts to reach

         18  uninsured children are part of the City's HealthStat

         19  Initiative, a collaboration of 14 City agencies, 16

         20  managed care plans and a wide array of community-

         21  and faith- based organizations dedicated to

         22  enrolling all those eligible in public health

         23  insurance programs.

         24                 In addition to specific enrollment

         25  events, DOE and HRA/OCHIA also use the school lunch
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          2  application to identify parents who need help in

          3  obtaining health insurance for their children.

          4  During this school year, the parents of 11,000

          5  children were identified.  A newly designed system

          6  will allow for facilitated enrollers to be

          7  electronically notified about requests for help,

          8  thereby greatly reducing the time between making a

          9  request and receiving help to enroll.

         10                 In addition, HRA/OCHIA and the Office

         11  of School Health, which is jointly administered by

         12  DOE and DOHMH, developed a ready reference, Hands on

         13  Health, for parent coordinators and other school

         14  staff so that they can better assist parents.  That

         15  guide is also on your table for your consideration.

         16  Hands on Health contains summaries of all the

         17  available public health insurance programs in the

         18  City, options for families who may not be eligible

         19  for public programs, and information about other

         20  public benefits for low- income families.

         21                 Complementing the event- and program-

         22  based enrollment activities fostered through the

         23  Healthstat Initiative are the routine and systematic

         24  enrollment efforts by DOH, the Health and Hospitals

         25  Corporation, and HRA.  The Department of Health's
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          2  Take Care New York campaign calls for having a

          3  regular doctor and health insurance as the first of

          4  ten steps to a longer and healthier life.  DOHMH has

          5  ten health centers with 29 assigned facilitated

          6  enrollers, three of whom work four days a week at

          7  Rikers Island.  The facilitated enrollers also

          8  participate in a range of community health events

          9  throughout the year.  DOHMH also manages Medicaid

         10  managed care contracts, including consumer

         11  assistance about health insurance through the

         12  Managed Care Consumer Assistance Program.  HHC

         13  regularly screens children and families and enrolls

         14  those eligible for public health insurance at its

         15  hospitals and outpatient facilities.

         16                 HRA has 19 Community Medicaid Offices

         17  in which parents can apply for public health

         18  insurance.  Beginning in 2002, HRA undertook a major

         19  initiative to transform its community Medicaid

         20  offices into Model Offices.  The core elements

         21  include eliminating pre- screening, upgrading

         22  technology, strategic triaging of consumers upon

         23  arrival and interviewing and processing

         24  efficiencies.  Completed in 2004, this process

         25  resulted in a 60% reduction in consumer wait times.
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          2  There are now Medicaid Model Offices in each HHC

          3  hospital.  Ongoing efforts have ensured that these

          4  improvements have been sustained and that Medicaid

          5  offices are a welcoming place for consumers to

          6  enroll in public health insurance.

          7                 Another resource for accessing health

          8  insurance and multiple benefit programs, ACCESS NYC,

          9  has just been launched by the City.  ACCESS NYC is

         10  an internet-based system that puts information about

         11  health insurance and other benefits in families'

         12  hands, in their time, in a place of their choosing

         13  and, for a great number, in their language.  Parents

         14  can print out a public health insurance application

         15  that is partially pre-populated using the

         16  information he or she enters during the

         17  pre-screening process and then apply at HRA

         18  Community Medicaid offices or take it to one of many

         19  facilitated enroller locations throughout the City.

         20                 Equally important to providing

         21  enrollment opportunities is ensuring that children

         22  have continuous coverage. HRA's Medical Insurance

         23  and Community Service Administration implemented a

         24  mail renewal program in October 2002, and through a

         25  process of continuous improvements has increased
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          2  consumer response rates by 40% from the previous

          3  face- to- face system.  In January 2006, HRA/MICSA

          4  undertook a full- scale redesign effort of the Mail

          5  Renewal Program and consumers are now assisted with

          6  a more user friendly recertification application.

          7  There are ongoing efforts to work with facilitated

          8  enrollers and consumers to improve the Mail Renewal

          9  Program.  HRA/MICSA has also developed the

         10  capability to post ongoing, updated information on

         11  the renewal status of each managed care plan's

         12  members who are in the renewal cycle to the

         13  enrollment broker's "Bulletin Board."  This

         14  initiative allows health plans to strategically use

         15  their sizeable outreach capability to assist

         16  families and individuals in completing

         17  recertification applications in a timely and

         18  accurate manner.

         19                 Another HRA/MICSA initiative is

         20  collaboration with HHC's Elmhurst and Woodhull

         21  Hospitals to enlist outpatient clinic personnel in

         22  reminding patients to renew their public health

         23  insurance coverage and assist them in doing so at

         24  their next scheduled appointment.  HHC has tied

         25  information on Medicaid consumers' recertification
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          2  dates to their appointment system.  When a consumer

          3  has a medical appointment near the time of their

          4  renewal, HHC staff completes phone outreach to those

          5  consumers, urging them to bring in their

          6  recertification materials so HHC staff can assist

          7  the consumer in its completion.  This pilot was

          8  recently expanded to include Queens Hospital,

          9  Bellevue and Lincoln Hospitals.  To test whether

         10  facilitated recertification can also be conducted in

         11  school settings, HRA/OCHIA is conducting a pilot

         12  program with the Children's Aid Society's school-

         13  based health centers.

         14                 With the prospect of Albany removing

         15  financial and administrative barriers to universal

         16  coverage for children, we are currently building a

         17  new model for health insurance outreach to better

         18  target the uninsured.  Our plans call for moving

         19  from venue based outreach to targeted enrollment

         20  strategies for individuals in specific age groups.

         21  These opportunities will only be realized by

         22  informed parents who are ready and willing to change

         23  the health insurance status of their uninsured

         24  children.  Specific strategies will be used for

         25  children zero to five years old, of school age and
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          2  out of school youth.  We know from our Commonwealth

          3  Fund supported Access to Coverage and Care Project,

          4  which we conducted in 23 schools in East Harlem and

          5  Bushwick, that the greatest gains in coverage for

          6  children come from focusing outreach and enrollment

          7  in pre- kindergarten, kindergarten and first grade.

          8  We will initiate this new strategy in collaboration

          9  with the Department of Education's Universal Pre-

         10  Kindergarten programs in March.

         11                 In conjunction with the Department of

         12  City Planning, HRA is updating its 2004 Public

         13  Health Insurance Participation in the Community

         14  Districts of New York City study on the number and

         15  location of individuals who are eligible for public

         16  health insurance but not enrolled.  This update will

         17  be available later this year to be used for future

         18  targeted outreach and enrollment initiatives.

         19                 The aforementioned efforts to enroll

         20  children and maintain continuous coverage fall

         21  within the current health policy context.  The City

         22  and HRA have developed a federal legislative agenda

         23  with a series of proposals to expand the City's

         24  capacity to reach and enroll uninsured children and

         25  families.  The first of these proposals seeks
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          2  federal reauthorization of the S- CHIP program.  HRA

          3  also seeks to extend the authorization period for

          4  eligibility for public health insurance to two years

          5  for children aged 18 and under, thereby reducing the

          6  burden for parents and resulting in more seamless,

          7  continuous coverage for children. Additionally, HRA

          8  is proposing that categorical Medicaid eligibility

          9  be extended to food stamp- eligible children.  And,

         10  we are asking Congress to support S1049, "the

         11  Covering Kids Act," that would allow the use of

         12  children's financial eligibility information from

         13  other state or federal government programs in order

         14  to meet requirements for enrollment in Medicaid or

         15  SCHIP.  We further urge Congress, excuse me, to

         16  extend the Transitional Medical Assistance program

         17  from 12 to 24 months, and to reauthorize the program

         18  for five years.

         19                 At the state level, we are calling

         20  for expansion of CHP B and the Healthy NY Program.

         21  These efforts are congruent with Governor Spitzer's

         22  plan to cover all children.  We hope the City

         23  Council will support us in advocating these federal

         24  and state changes in the current Congressional and

         25  State legislative sessions.
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          2                 The framework that is used by the

          3  City and its partners to expand coverage for

          4  children enables us to continue our productive

          5  efforts, address future challenges and take

          6  advantage of new opportunities.  Our strategy has

          7  been recognized outside of New York City.  Last

          8  year, we hosted a delegation from the California

          9  League of Cities, who wanted to learn more about New

         10  York City's health insurance efforts, in particular

         11  its HealthStat Initiative. I am glad to report that

         12  the Los Angeles Mayor's Office and the League of

         13  Cities consider our work worthy of replication and

         14  that the WellPoint Foundation has given $1.6 million

         15  to California's Cities for Healthy Kids to assist

         16  with this replication.  New York City should be

         17  proud of its partnerships and collaborations, which

         18  are fundamental to the progress we have made.  We

         19  thank the Council for being one of those partners

         20  and we look forward to working with the Council to

         21  make sure all the City's children are insured.

         22                 Thank you once again for the

         23  opportunity to testify. I welcome any questions that

         24  you may have at this time.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA: Thank you very
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          2  much.  Before I ask my line of questions, I just

          3  wanted to do some other members that joined us.  We

          4  have, my far right, Council Member Kendall Stewart

          5  from Brooklyn, from Staten Island we have Council

          6  Member Mike McMahon and from the Bronx we have

          7  Council Woman Maria del Carmen Arroyo and to my left

          8  we have Council Woman Helen Sears from Queens.

          9                 First, I want to commend the

         10  administration on doing a fine job.  I think we

         11  share in the same vision of making sure that all

         12  children are insured.  I see that you do have

         13  information for small businesses and you have the

         14  seminars going on outside. I was just wondering,

         15  have there been a collaborative effort with the

         16  Chambers of Commerce within the local boroughs?

         17                 EXECUTIVE DEPUTY COMMISSIONER

         18  CADOGAN: There has indeed been a collaborative

         19  effort.  In fact, I always say, Chairman, the work

         20  of HRA/OCHIA is a factor of the kindness of its

         21  partners and with regard to Chambers of Commerce we

         22  work directly with the Brooklyn Chamber, who you may

         23  know has created and sponsors Brooklyn HealthWorks,

         24  which is one of the special options that we spend

         25  time with them to promote.  We also have worked with
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          2  the Staten Island Chamber of Commerce.  It has come

          3  out with a very focused health insurance product,

          4  Staten Island Wrap.  We work with the Manhattan

          5  Chamber of Commerce and we have worked with some of

          6  the more ethnically based Chambers of Commerce,

          7  again to promote and make small businesses aware of

          8  the more affordable options that are available to

          9  them.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA: And the Bronx

         11  Chamber of Commerce and the Greater Chamber of

         12  Commerce of New York?

         13                 EXECUTIVE DEPUTY COMMISSIONER

         14  CADOGAN: We, in fact, have had conversations over

         15  the past year with the Bronx Chamber of Commerce,

         16  looking at ways they can be engaged both in

         17  promotion and in perhaps in development of some

         18  alternate affordable insurance options, so we spread

         19  ourselves very wide among the Chambers of Commerces

         20  because small businesses are where a great portion

         21  of where the uninsured fall.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA: Any time that

         23  you're looking to reach out to a Chamber or any

         24  organization within the local Boroughs, I'm pretty

         25  sure any Council Member here would be willing to
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          2  make accommodations and make that entrance for you

          3  and the Health Department to come in, so feel free

          4  to contact any one of us, to assist you in that

          5  matter.

          6                 EXECUTIVE DEPUTY COMMISSIONER

          7  CADOGAN: We appreciate the offer.  Thank you.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA: Thank you.  On

          9  the Medicaid involvement, and on Child Health Plus,

         10  what have you seen to be the greatest barriers for

         11  individuals to get involved?

         12                 EXECUTIVE DEPUTY COMMISSIONER

         13  CADOGAN: Well, I think I actually articulated some

         14  of those in the context of my testimony.  Awareness,

         15  still, in our minds, is a barrier.  There are

         16  families and parents who are not aware that their

         17  children may be eligible, are likely eligible, for

         18  the range of public health insurance programs that

         19  are available.

         20                 There are other parents who are new

         21  Americans, who, in the context of the current

         22  immigration reform debate, are concerned about

         23  whether they can take the step of accessing public

         24  health insurance programs without risking

         25  endangering their ability to work or their ability
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          2  to legalize their status.  We spend time in the

          3  context of the work that we do in the HealthStat

          4  Initiative with our partner City agencies and

          5  managed care plans in making the enrollment in

          6  public health insurance something the parents know

          7  is not going to jeopardize their status and, in

          8  fact, something that will help them in terms of

          9  assuring the healthcare access for their children.

         10                 So, we spend a great deal of time

         11  casting that message, more than the issues of

         12  enrollment, however, the challenge that I think the

         13  City faces as a whole right now is maintaining

         14  continuous coverage for children and families,

         15  making sure that in the current context of

         16  recertification that we have that folks are aware

         17  that there is a time frame for recertification that

         18  is one year and that it should be timely to maintain

         19  continuous coverage, so that as you can see also in

         20  the testimony we are taking the same facilitation

         21  and assistance that has been brought to the

         22  enrollment side of our work to the recertification

         23  side and seeing if we can increase the gains on

         24  timely renewal for children and families.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA: Okay.  At this
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          2  point, I don't have any other questions.  If any of

          3  my colleagues, Council Member Kendall Stewart and

          4  then Council Member Inez Dickens will follow.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART:  Good

          6  morning.

          7                 EXECUTIVE DEPUTY COMMISSIONER

          8  CADOGAN: Good morning, Council Member.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: You spoke

         10  about the different specific strategies which you

         11  use for the zero to five and then you say school age

         12  and then you said out of school.  Could you

         13  elaborate a little bit more on what you're actually

         14  doing to really increase the enrollment?

         15                 EXECUTIVE DEPUTY COMMISSIONER

         16  CADOGAN: Well, as I mentioned, we're going from the

         17  historical venue- based, program based enrollment

         18  efforts within HealthStat, which will continue, but

         19  focusing to a more targeted effort.  In the context

         20  of zero to five, one of the things we are developing

         21  and will look to implement in the Spring is work

         22  with Universal Pre- K programs in terms of

         23  strategically identifying those children who are

         24  uninsured, contacting their parents and offering

         25  them assistance to enroll their children in public
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          2  health insurance programs and then matching those

          3  parents with facilitated enrollers, whether they be

          4  managed care plans or community- based organizations

          5  that can help them actually change their children's

          6  status.

          7                 On the school level, we are building

          8  a framework now that will engage data systems to

          9  again, strategically identify and focus our work on

         10  those who are truly uninsured and then work again to

         11  link parents to assistance.  Without a school youth,

         12  we will need to work more closely with both the

         13  Department of Education and DYCD across the programs

         14  that serve out of school youth, those youth who may

         15  not be enrolled in school any more, because they

         16  have dropped out or otherwise left school, who may

         17  be working or who may not, who are engaged in a

         18  variety of programs or who may not be, to look at

         19  ways through those programs, that again we can

         20  identify, those who are uninsured and connect them

         21  and their families to enrollment resources.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: All right.

         23  On the other hand, what do you do in terms of

         24  encouraging the folks to use the medical coverage

         25  that you are offering?  What are you doing in terms
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          2  of going into schools and the day care centers and

          3  what are you doing specifically in that arena?  I

          4  know you talk about you want to focus on those three

          5  areas but I want to know specifically what you're

          6  doing if you have folks going out there in the day

          7  care, into the schools to really try to recruit.

          8  Because you know these folks are afraid  --

          9                 EXECUTIVE DEPUTY COMMISSIONER

         10  CADOGAN: Let me talk a little bit about the nuts and

         11  bolts of HealthStat and how that works.  In a, in

         12  the zero to five setting, let me speak to our

         13  partnership with the Administration for Children's

         14  Services.  We have a managed care plan, several

         15  managed care plans, that are stationed at the area

         16  resource, children's resource development sites,

         17  where families apply for subsidized day care.  They

         18  are there and available where parents are coming in

         19  to apply for subsidized cay care vouchers.  When

         20  those parents come in with the documentation that

         21  they need, which is usually the documentation that

         22  they will need to provide for public health

         23  insurance, they are directed by staff, and we work

         24  with staff in those offices, to, if they are

         25  uninsured, and that question is asked as part of the

                                                            25

          1  COMMITTEE ON HEALTH

          2  intake process, to sit down with a facilitated

          3  enroller and explore what they may be eligible for.

          4  And through that process over the past year, we have

          5  enrolled over 1,000 children.

          6                 In the school setting, what we have

          7  done is take advantage of every opportunity where

          8  there is an engagement of parents.  So, during

          9  school registration when parents are coming in to

         10  register their children for school, we partner

         11  managed care organization and community- based

         12  facilitated enrollers with schools, they are

         13  actually there, to assist parents, again, at a time

         14  when they are coming in with materials and

         15  documentation that may be relevant to the enrollment

         16  process.

         17                 On the out- of- school youth at this

         18  point, we have the benefit of targeted assistance

         19  from DYCD through what's called HealthStat

         20  coordinators that are designated staff from

         21  community-based organizations funded by DYCD who

         22  work within their own community organizations and

         23  also work with faith, immigrant organizations and

         24  others throughout the community to educate them

         25  about the public health insurance programs, to share
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          2  information also about the City's Take Care New York

          3  campaign, which is the campaign that talks about

          4  youth and access of healthcare for the betterment of

          5  one's life and, again, to work on referral and other

          6  processes to actually enroll children and families

          7  in health insurance coverage.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: I want to

          9  shift a little bit.  A lot of times, in most of the

         10  youngsters that need this help, you only know that

         11  when they visit the doctor.  Do we have any program

         12  whereby the primary physician, that you would have

         13  someone or have someone within that office that

         14  those folks that came into the office without

         15  insurance that they have this available to them.

         16  They came in without insurance and they might not

         17  be, you know, they might be able to pay for that

         18  first visit because it's an emergency but follow up

         19  or to know whether that child is getting the right

         20  type of coverage, is there any program or anything

         21  that you're doing to say, well listen, all primary

         22  physician should, if a child comes in and is self-

         23  paying and it's an emergency, whatever, that they

         24  can help access these children?

         25                 EXECUTIVE DEPUTY COMMISSIONER
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          2  CADOGAN: Where we see that operative now is in the

          3  HHC context.  HHC in its hospitals and outpatient

          4  facilities is making that concerted effort to

          5  identify those children and families who are

          6  uninsured and connect them to public health

          7  insurance programs if they're eligible.

          8                 In the context of what we are looking

          9  to do going forward, we are also going to explore

         10  working with providers, for example, those who

         11  provide PCAP services, who provide pre- natal care

         12  services for pregnant mothers, in terms of making

         13  sure that those mothers are aware of the eligibility

         14  of their children for public health insurance and

         15  not only the eligibility but the need to renew

         16  coverage for those children.  Again, HHC is also

         17  taking steps in that regard in working with families

         18  to identify their renewal dates, assist them with

         19  getting their packages in in a timely way.  So we're

         20  looking at using all those tools to our best

         21  benefit.

         22                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER JOYCE

         23  WEINSTEIN: Also, with the Department of Health and

         24  Mental Hygiene, our Health Centers, we have our

         25  facilitated, our own facilitated enrollers
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          2  co-located with our Health Centers, so that if a

          3  child goes for an immunization or for their parents

          4  go for other services offered by the Health

          5  Department, we have referral processes in place and

          6  protocols to be able to refer to our own facilitated

          7  enrollers who then assist in helping them apply,

          8  educate them about their choices and obtain

          9  documentation so that they can actually complete the

         10  application.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: Well, one of

         12  the reason I ask about primary physicians is the

         13  fact that we have immigrants who might be afraid to

         14  go to public institutions, and so, they would rather

         15  go to a primary physician and it's usually too late,

         16  or very late, or the fact that in public

         17  institutions you have to wait in the emergency room

         18  long hours before you can see a health care

         19  provider.  My question, basically is, how we can

         20  really work in these primary care facilities where

         21  you find immigrants heading to most of the time, how

         22  we can help them, and if there is any way you can

         23  have the application or someone to really present

         24  the information to those folks who may desperately

         25  need it?
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          2                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER JOYCE

          3  WEINSTEIN: Council Member, I think that you're point

          4  is well taken in that we want to perfect the work

          5  that's being done through the Department of Health

          6  and with HHC and I think that we have tried and true

          7  models that I think are working in the pediatric

          8  community.

          9                 I think the other thing you should be

         10  aware of with regard to what I'm going to call the

         11  New Americans group is that we do spend quite a bit

         12  of time building alliances in the faith community

         13  because for many of those New Americans, their

         14  churches, their mosques, their other places of

         15  worship are the places sometimes where they do feel

         16  the most comfortable to address problems that go

         17  beyond their faith.  So we have found that in

         18  working with them and in working with many of our

         19  agencies who bring other kinds of information to

         20  those places of worship that we have been able to

         21  again engage another set of uninsured around

         22  changing the health insurance status.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: Mr. Chair, I

         24  just want to thank you for giving me this

         25  opportunity and Commissioner, I think you should
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          2  just continue doing the good work that you're doing

          3  in terms of informing the folks about this type of

          4  program.  In Brooklyn, I know there are quite a

          5  number of programs like this at Kings County

          6  Hospital and different institutions around trying to

          7  encourage folks to use the insurance program so that

          8  they can, at least, prevent themselves from becoming

          9  a statistic by not using it.  Thank you.

         10                 EXECUTIVE DEPUTY COMMISSIONER

         11  CADOGAN: Thank you.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA: Thank you very

         13  much, Council Member.  Before we go on to the next

         14  questioner, we've been joined by Council Member

         15  Helen Foster from the Bronx.  Next in the line of

         16  questioning is Council Member Inez Dickens and after

         17  her will be Council Member Sears and then after her

         18  will be Council Member Mendez.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER DICKENS:  Thank you,

         20  Mr. Chair, and thank you, Commissioner for your

         21  testimony and all of your good work.  I have a

         22  couple of questions.  You mentioned about that you

         23  do outreach with ethnically based smaller chambers

         24  other than just the larger Chambers.  I had asked

         25  this question several months ago. Has any outreach
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          2  been done to the Greater Harlem Chamber of Commerce

          3  or East Harlem Chamber of Commerce?

          4                 EXECUTIVE DEPUTY COMMISSIONER

          5  CADOGAN: We have worked with the Harlem Chamber of

          6  Commerce, usually around Harlem week.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER DICKENS: East Harlem

          8  or the Greater Harlem?  Which one?

          9                 EXECUTIVE DEPUTY COMMISSIONER

         10  CADOGAN: The Greater Harlem.  The East Harlem

         11  Chamber of Commerce I believe we've had some

         12  conversations with but we have not done activities

         13  with but I know that we have had health insurance

         14  events as part of Harlem Week activities and we also

         15  do engage many of our partners in outreach in the

         16  Harlem community.  It is one of the areas in the

         17  City where there is a concentration of children

         18  eligible for public health insurance but not yet

         19  enrolled so we do invest quite a bit of time in

         20  working with the police department around having

         21  activities that would, again, engage uninsured

         22  families as well as working in the Workforce I site

         23  that is in the Harlem State Office Building, making

         24  sure that enrollers are available there, so we do

         25  strategically place, working with the housing
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          2  developments, through NYCHA, etc.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER DICKENS: Because in

          4  speaking with the Greater Harlem Chamber I know that

          5  you do do it during Harlem week but that's only once

          6  a year and my problem with the State Office Building

          7  is it's required, when you go into the State Office

          8  Building you're required to show photo ID and many

          9  of the population, particularly the immigrant

         10  population has a problem with that and therefore,

         11  they do not benefit from the outreach being in the

         12  State Office Building, so I do have a problem with

         13  that.  So I would really like you to consider some

         14  place other than --

         15                 EXECUTIVE DEPUTY COMMISSIONER

         16  CADOGAN: Well, we do do outreach in the community,

         17  on the street, as well, we work with a number of

         18  faith- based organizations and other community-

         19  based organizations in the Harlem communities.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER DICKENS: Now, in

         21  speaking about the faith- based, because I spoke to

         22  several churches where the immigrant population does

         23  attend, and they weren't familiar and I would like

         24  them, they're fairly large churches, but they're

         25  within side streets, they're not like Convent Avenue
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          2  Baptist or Abyssinian, they're smaller churches by

          3  that but they're large as far as immigrant

          4  population and outreach needs to actually be done

          5  within faith-based organizations within churches

          6  such as those, where actually the immigrant

          7  population does really attend, actually to a greater

          8  deal than they do to the larger churches, and so I

          9  would like you to consider outreach to churches such

         10  as those.

         11                 EXECUTIVE DEPUTY COMMISSIONER

         12  CADOGAN: Not a problem, Council Member.  We'd be

         13  happy to.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER DICKENS: Because there

         15  has been Latino, as well as Haitian and African

         16  churches that have grown significantly in the last

         17  five years, and so they need to have the outreach

         18  done within those organizations.  Also, what about

         19  the many, particularly in my community, smaller

         20  businesses that employ one to three persons but who

         21  actually do not belong to any Chamber of Commerce,

         22  and outreach needs to be done to those businesses

         23  because in my community we have many more of those

         24  than we actually do the big bucks organizations.

         25                 EXECUTIVE DEPUTY COMMISSIONER
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          2  CADOGAN: Understood and our challenge is getting the

          3  broad message out about the full menu of special

          4  options that is available to businesses like those

          5  that are really very small.  One of the ways that we

          6  are addressing that is to educate brokers with whom

          7  these businesses often deal when they're at least

          8  trying to get information, even if they can't afford

          9  to take the step to access health insurance.  We're

         10  doing a seminar on the 24th, next week, to educate

         11  the City's brokers about these special affordable

         12  options.  We would hope that at some point in the

         13  future, also, to do more of a broader informational

         14  campaign that would get to small businesses and

         15  really advise them about these many options that are

         16  available to them.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER DICKENS: All right.

         18  And then, also, please, Commissioner, what is your

         19  outreach to emancipated youth, whether legally

         20  emancipated or by circumstance?  And in my

         21  community, we have quite a few, percentage- wise, of

         22  emancipated youth.  They're on their own and they

         23  really do not seek any healthcare at a hospital or

         24  anything.  Has there been any concerted effort to do

         25  outreach with them?  Not within the schools because
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          2  some of them don't even go, but they will go to

          3  organizations in certain NYCHA developments, and

          4  some of them, like I have an organization but not

          5  for healthcare, that does outreach within the gangs.

          6                 EXECUTIVE DEPUTY COMMISSIONER

          7  CADOGAN: I think our tapping into that cadre of

          8  youth is two-fold in the HealthStat Initiative.  You

          9  mentioned NYCHA Developments and we do work very

         10  closely with NYCHA and with HealthStat coordinators

         11  which they have engaged to work in the housing

         12  developments, to spread in the developments, both to

         13  residents as well as through their publications to

         14  residents about the availability of health insurance

         15  coverage and to create events that are development-

         16  based where residents can go to enroll.

         17                 We also work with the community

         18  affairs division of the police department.  And

         19  those officers are often the ones who have a sense

         20  of children's activities in the community.  They

         21  work with either community boards or community-

         22  based organizations around youth activities that

         23  also we can connect or insinuate as I would say

         24  health insurance information and enrollment into

         25  those activities.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER DICKENS: All right,

          3  because these youth I'm very concerned about because

          4  they're not getting healthcare.

          5                 EXECUTIVE DEPUTY COMMISSIONER

          6  CADOGAN: We're also concerned about that youth

          7  population because they are among the fastest

          8  growing population in the uninsured so we are also

          9  very concerned.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER DICKENS: And also, in

         11  your testimony you said opportunities will only be

         12  realized by informed parents who are ready and

         13  willing, etc.  What exactly did you mean by that?

         14                 EXECUTIVE DEPUTY COMMISSIONER

         15  CADOGAN: Well, what I meant to convey is that the

         16  parts of the equation that get us to successful

         17  enrollment, not only involve the opportunities that

         18  have been broadly cast by the City to facilitate

         19  enrollment, but also parents taking the step to

         20  access those benefits and to work with the

         21  assistance that's available to maintain coverage for

         22  their children.  So it's a two- part equation.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER DICKENS: Also, what

         24  other hospitals other than in Brooklyn, I know you

         25  mentioned Woodhull, for instance in Manhattan,
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          2  specifically in Northern Manhattan?

          3                 EXECUTIVE DEPUTY COMMISSIONER

          4  CADOGAN: We haven't yet gotten to Northern Manhattan

          5  in the context of that facilitated recertification

          6  program that I mentioned.  I think, again, it's a

          7  matter of perfecting that model.  As it is rolled

          8  out over the HHC portfolio, and hopefully soon you

          9  will see it at a Harlem hospital near you.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER DICKENS: May I ask

         11  that you work with my office and anything we can do

         12  to help facilitate so that you can get into Northern

         13  Manhattan because that is one of the fastest growing

         14  areas in, actually, in New York City.

         15                 EXECUTIVE DEPUTY COMMISSIONER

         16  CADOGAN: We will not hesitate to expand our work in

         17  Northern Manhattan as we have it now.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER DICKENS: Thank you so

         19  much, Commissioner for your testimony and thank you

         20  for your work.

         21                 EXECUTIVE DEPUTY COMMISSIONER

         22  CADOGAN: Thank you for your help.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA: Next we have

         24  Council Member Helen Sears.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: Thank you, Mr.
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          2  Chair.  Good morning, Commissioner.

          3                 EXECUTIVE DEPUTY COMMISSIONER

          4  CADOGAN: Good morning.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS:  This is

          6  something in terms of the covering insurance for the

          7  children.  You've really come a long way and I have

          8  to commend you for that and your agency has done a

          9  remarkable job.  There are still over several

         10  hundred thousand that are not insured, so I'd like

         11  to address a couple of my questions to that.  One is

         12  that you talked about parent involvement.  Do you

         13  use the parent coordinators in the schools, because

         14  they're in the elementary and they're in the

         15  intermediate schools and I do know that from the,

         16  and how do you use them, because I've had meetings

         17  with the parent coordinators in my district, all of

         18  them, and I continue to do it.  A good many of the

         19  time, they're not used appropriately.  They either

         20  don't have office space, they don't have equipment

         21  for xeroxing, but that's a whole other issue.  So if

         22  you could explain how you work with the

         23  coordinators.

         24                 EXECUTIVE DEPUTY COMMISSIONER

         25  CADOGAN: Parent coordinators have become one of our
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          2  most treasured resources in getting information to

          3  parents about the availability of public health

          4  insurance and healthcare options, generally.  We

          5  spend time during the early part of the school year

          6  training parent coordinators as new coordinators

          7  come on about the public health insurance programs

          8  and other resources that are available to access

          9  healthcare for families.  The booklet that we have

         10  worked on in cooperation and partnership with the

         11  Office of School Health which you have in front of

         12  you, Hands on Health, is a booklet that is available

         13  to parent coordinators, which they can use to

         14  provide information to parents, either as they are

         15  asked or in the context of various workshops that

         16  parent coordinators provide to parents throughout

         17  the course of the school year.  We understand that

         18  the parent coordinators are very much spokespeople

         19  for the kind of resources that we are trying to

         20  connect parents to.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: Do you provide

         22  the materials to them, and I know that's a hard

         23  thing to do, but most coordinators do not have the

         24  capacity to reproduce in the different languages,

         25  and unless that's done they're not reaching the
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          2  parent population.

          3                 EXECUTIVE DEPUTY COMMISSIONER

          4  CADOGAN: We take great care to provide the resources

          5  to schools and to school personnel, including parent

          6  coordinators, to make their job easier in providing

          7  this information to parents.  We realize that

          8  schools have a first mission, which is education,

          9  but healthcare is important in the delivery of good

         10  education so we try to facilitate by providing

         11  information to parent coordinators.  In fact, last

         12  year in our back to school campaign, which we

         13  usually launch in the early part of the school year,

         14  the end of August, early September, we provided palm

         15  cards to parent coordinators which they could

         16  distribute.  So we're very, recognize the

         17  limitations of resources within the schools.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: So, are the

         19  parent coordinators asked to keep a tracking, so

         20  that we know exactly how effective they have been in

         21  the distribution of the materials, or is it just

         22  given to them and you do not have any idea from that

         23  particular school who's been enrolled in a program.

         24                 EXECUTIVE DEPUTY COMMISSIONER

         25  CADOGAN: The parent coordinators are not asked by us
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          2  to keep a particular tracking but we do track

          3  through the HealthStat Initiative the enrollment

          4  that is generated through the Department of

          5  Education, so we have a sense of how these variety

          6  of efforts, including the engaging of parent

          7  coordinators, is delivering enrollments with regard

          8  to uninsured children.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: So there would

         10  be no objection if I asked my coordinators to

         11  provide that information?

         12                 EXECUTIVE DEPUTY COMMISSIONER

         13  CADOGAN: There would be no objection from us.  If

         14  there's any information that the coordinators need

         15   --

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: And I'll be

         17  happy to share it with you.  Okay.

         18                 EXECUTIVE DEPUTY COMMISSIONER

         19  CADOGAN: We will look to hear from you.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: Thank you.  On

         21  another age group.  Approximately 50% of our high

         22  school students drop out. Chances are they're not

         23  covered at all.  So, how do you reach that

         24  population.  Particularly that they're teenage years

         25  and there are many health indexes that effect them.
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          2                 EXECUTIVE DEPUTY COMMISSIONER

          3  CADOGAN: That's a challenge that we're grappling

          4  with right now.  The agency with whom we're

          5  grappling with that issue is DYCD, who is the focus

          6  of in- school and out- of- school youth programs for

          7  just that youth population but even those programs

          8  may not capture all of the uninsured youth that

          9  we're trying to connect with.  We also have to think

         10  of other strategic and targeted ways that we reach

         11  those youth.  Some of the things that we are

         12  starting to explore is how we speak to them in their

         13  language, on the social networking front, the web-

         14  based fronts through which they communicate, all of

         15  these are going to be kind of striking new territory

         16  in terms of reaching that population.  The other

         17  engagement that we also have to consider is what

         18  changes can be made on the policy level to reach, to

         19  cover children over a broader kind of dependency

         20  period and whether at the legislative level we might

         21  be able to urge and perhaps obtain expanded

         22  dependent coverage for a broader age range in terms

         23  of covering those, not only older adolescents but

         24  youth who are working or starting in their initial

         25  jobs where they are not receiving health insurance
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          2  but yet need coverage.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: Mr. Chairman,

          4  we may look at that because that is a whole

          5  population that is costing this City and ultimately,

          6  it comes down to dollars and cents, that is costing

          7  this City a lot of money that we are not really

          8  realizing the reimbursement of that, and that's a

          9  huge population out there.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA: I agree.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS:  All right.

         12  Thank you.  One or two more, they're very quick.

         13  What did the pre- screening for the process for the

         14  program Medicaid, you stated that it's going to be

         15  eliminated, what did that consist of that it could

         16  be eliminated?

         17                 EXECUTIVE DEPUTY COMMISSIONER

         18  CADOGAN: My understanding is that it involved a

         19  distinct appointment at community Medicaid offices

         20  to explore an individual's eligibility and to engage

         21  the individual in a checklist of items that they

         22  would then have to then come back and bring to

         23  apply.  That has been compressed in the application

         24  appointment.  You come in one time, the screening is

         25  essentially done in the course of reviewing the
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          2  documentation and materials that are needed to

          3  apply.  So, it is taking a two step process down to

          4  one step, facilitating less work for the consumer.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: Okay.  And the

          6  final question is that you mentioned about getting

          7  applications or information online.  Many, many do

          8  not have computers.  So when the coordinators are

          9  working with the groups or any other outreach, are

         10  they advised that they can use the public library in

         11  their community to do that free?

         12                 EXECUTIVE DEPUTY COMMISSIONER

         13  CADOGAN: They are distinctly advised of that and I

         14  believe that Access NYC is now available at several

         15  libraries.  So, the City's tool that allows for pre-

         16  screening and an initial population of a application

         17  [sic] Is available at several of the City's

         18  libraries.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: All right.

         20  Thank you very much.  Thank you, Mr. Chair.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA: Thank you very

         22  much, Council Member.  Next will be Council Member

         23  Mendez.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER MENDEZ: Good morning.

         25                 EXECUTIVE DEPUTY COMMISSIONER
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          2  CADOGAN: Good morning.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER MENDEZ: Let me start

          4  with the first question.  In your testimony, you

          5  indicate that 14 City agencies are working together

          6  and I've heard you mention a few.  Can you tell me

          7  what those 14 agencies are?

          8                 EXECUTIVE DEPUTY COMMISSIONER

          9  CADOGAN: Oh, now you're going to test my memory.

         10  The Administration for Children's Services, The

         11  Department of Education, The Department of Youth and

         12  Community Development, the New York City Police

         13  Department, the New York City Fire Department, the

         14  Taxi and Limousine Commission, the Department of

         15  Small Business Services, I hope someone is counting

         16  for me,

         17                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA: You need a

         18  lifeline?

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER MENDEZ: You're at

         20  eight.

         21                 EXECUTIVE DEPUTY COMMISSIONER

         22  CADOGAN: Department of Health and Mental Hygiene,

         23  how could I forget, one of our most important

         24  partners, the Health and Hospitals Corporation, the

         25  Department of Probation, the New York City Housing
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          2  Authority, I think I may have covered everyone by

          3  now but someone will prompt me if I haven't.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER MENDEZ: I only have 11

          5  but that's pretty good.

          6                 EXECUTIVE DEPUTY COMMISSIONER

          7  CADOGAN: The Parks Department.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA: That's 12.  As on

          9  Who Wants to Be a Millionaire, you get two

         10  lifelines.

         11                 EXECUTIVE DEPUTY COMMISSIONER

         12  CADOGAN: I know, I know.  Deal or No Deal.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER MENDEZ: Specifically,

         14  with NYCHA you mentioned, are you doing any work

         15  also with HPD because there are other buildings that

         16  have subsidies that are not managed by NYCHA? Are

         17  you doing anything  --

         18                 EXECUTIVE DEPUTY COMMISSIONER

         19  CADOGAN: We have done some work with HPD in terms of

         20  some of the workshops that they make available in

         21  communities.  They're workshops have essentially

         22  been diminished both in size and scope so we have

         23  kind of limited our work with HPD at the present

         24  moment.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER MENDEZ.  Okay.  I
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          2  think that may be another opportunity there.  There

          3  are many buildings out there that receive subsidies

          4  or have to do reporting to HPD so there may be

          5  another way of outreaching.  Specifically with

          6  NYCHA, how are you doing outreach with NYCHA in the

          7  developments to try to enroll more children and

          8  residents from those developments?

          9                 EXECUTIVE DEPUTY COMMISSIONER

         10  CADOGAN: NYCHA has core of HealthStat coordinators

         11  that are spread across the Boroughs that work with

         12  management of developments as well as City agencies

         13  that are part of the HealthStat Initiative to create

         14  education and enrollment events that are

         15  development- based or in commercial strips or areas

         16  near developments that will engage the residents of

         17  that community as well as others in the community.

         18  We also have partnered facilitated enrollers in

         19  application offices and section eight offices that

         20  are administered by NYCHA where individuals go to

         21  apply or check the status of their application for

         22  public housing and at those offices, individuals are

         23  directed if they aren't insured to sit down with a

         24  facilitated enroller and again, engage on what

         25  public health programs they may be eligible for.

                                                            48

          1  COMMITTEE ON HEALTH

          2  NYCHA has been one of our most engaged and most

          3  active partners in casting the message about public

          4  health insurance both in their regular journal that

          5  is circulated to NYCHA residents, through newsletter

          6  information and also through flyers and brochures

          7  that are also sporadically shared with residents.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER MENDEZ: I have found

          9  that the best way to do outreach is really door- to-

         10  door, where you're really engaging someone.  Has

         11  there been any door-to-door effort anywhere in order

         12  to do outreach.  Earlier in your testimony you said

         13  you have identified about 11,000 through the

         14  schools.  Does any of that outreach include doing

         15  door-to-door and if not, what is the outreach that's

         16  being done.

         17                 EXECUTIVE DEPUTY COMMISSIONER

         18  CADOGAN: We, in the context of NYCHA, have not

         19  engaged door-to-door outreach specifically.  It has

         20  been event- based and program-based or office-based.

         21  As we go forward, we certainly can look at the

         22  opportunities as we're moving in a more targeted

         23  enrollment effort at ways to identify families or

         24  individuals using NYCHA information that may be

         25  uninsured.  I know that there is work the Department
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          2  of Health has done around health programs with NYCHA

          3  and I don't know to what extent that has involved

          4  again casting the message about health insurance.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER MENDEZ: Is there any

          6  door-to-door effort aside, you said you're not doing

          7  it at NYCHA, but is all the outreach event-,

          8  program- or office- based at this point or is there

          9  any door- to- door by any of the other agencies that

         10  you're working with?

         11                 EXECUTIVE DEPUTY COMMISSIONER

         12  CADOGAN: Most of it is targeted either event- or

         13  program-, location- or venue- based activities.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER MENDEZ: So you say

         15  most, does that mean that some, there is some door-

         16  to- door going on at this moment?

         17                 EXECUTIVE DEPUTY COMMISSIONER

         18  CADOGAN: Again, I think that perhaps Assistant

         19  Commissioner Weinstein should talk about the door-

         20  to- door efforts that may be part of Take Care New

         21  York that cast some of that information.

         22                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER WEINSTEIN:

         23  It's less so.  I think, one, we have to be cognizant

         24  of the fact that, in fact, we're invited in, so to

         25  speak, so that's one issue and I know we're very

                                                            50

          1  COMMITTEE ON HEALTH

          2  cognizant of that even as we monitor and work with

          3  our health plans to appropriately target their

          4  activities both in enrollment and marketing

          5  activities to areas where there are high uninsured.

          6  Our own facilitated enrollers certainly, to the

          7  extent that they make home visits and help people

          8  apply and obtain documentation, then, of course,

          9  they visit and are welcomed into homes to assist and

         10  similarly are other programs run by the Health

         11  Department be it our newborn home visiting program,

         12  Nurse Family Partnership program for example, does

         13  have information about health insurance and refers

         14  clients in need of other services, to our

         15  facilitated enrollers who then piggyback on there

         16  and assist them in their homes.

         17                 EXECUTIVE DEPUTY COMMISSIONER

         18  CADOGAN: Council Member, just to the point, the

         19  school lunch application framework that we've

         20  developed with the Department of Education is not

         21  door-to-door, I think, in the way that you mean, in

         22  terms of individuals going and having perhaps a

         23  random engagement. Certainly, it is individualized

         24  in that those families who identify themselves

         25  through the application as wanting information and
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          2  assistance with regard to health insurance

          3  enrollment are then matched with a facilitated

          4  enroller who does contact them personally to provide

          5  that kind of assistance, so it is akin to that kind

          6  of individualized process that you were talking

          7  about.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER MENDEZ: Thank you.  Is

          9  this book available in other languages and if so,

         10  what languages?

         11                 EXECUTIVE DEPUTY COMMISSIONER

         12  CADOGAN: Right now that book is only available in

         13  English.  We would hope at some point to make it

         14  available in Spanish.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER MENDEZ: And in other

         16  languages as well?

         17                 EXECUTIVE DEPUTY COMMISSIONER

         18  CADOGAN: As we can.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER MENDEZ: Do you have an

         20  idea of when that may happen because while this book

         21  is very informative, I think the people who need it

         22  most would need it in other languages, so this

         23  information would not really be available,

         24  accessible to them.

         25                 EXECUTIVE DEPUTY COMMISSIONER
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          2  CADOGAN: That's something that we're going to have

          3  to work on within our own internal resources at HRA.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER MENDEZ: In your

          5  testimony, there was some mention of undocumented

          6  immigrants.  How are we getting information out to

          7  the undocumented community who, often times, are

          8  very fearful of outreaching because they're afraid

          9  their status might be divulged?

         10                 EXECUTIVE DEPUTY COMMISSIONER

         11  CADOGAN: Again, through the HealthStat Initiative,

         12  working with community- based organizations who

         13  provide facilitated enrollment, as well as working

         14  with City agencies and providing information in,

         15  like the Department of Education, there is a

         16  brochure that we provide and we provide it to a

         17  number of City agencies, that is in several

         18  languages and does provide information about public

         19  health insurance in about seven languages.  We are

         20  casting the information to the immigrant population.

         21    We also work with the faith- based community and

         22  provide workshops and other kinds of activities

         23  directly in places of worship that are done by staff

         24  who speak the language, who often speak the language

         25  or are able to connect with individuals who speak
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          2  the language in those immigrant communities.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER MENDEZ: Can you

          4  provide this Committee with that information that is

          5  provided in different languages that the community-

          6  based organizations are using?

          7                 EXECUTIVE DEPUTY COMMISSIONER

          8  CADOGAN: Yes, we can certainly provide that.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER MENDEZ: Thank you.  My

         10  last question is this.  I've seen this in my

         11  community, I'm sure this is widespread in the City,

         12  where we have some children who are in Children

         13  Health Plus, we have families who are enrolled in

         14  Family Health Plus, they have different managed care

         15  companies and hence, different providers.  Is there

         16  a way to work to try to counteract that so that we

         17  can get a family, if they want same provider, to be

         18  enrolled in the same managed care company?

         19                 EXECUTIVE DEPUTY COMMISSIONER

         20  CADOGAN: That division is something that is not

         21  fully within the City's control and I know that the

         22  State, under the auspices of Governor Spitzer is now

         23  looking at ways to make enrollment in managed care

         24  for a family more seamless.  Perhaps more seamless

         25  as for children and adults, even extending through
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          2  having families access the same providers, if

          3  possible.  That would be work that we would partner

          4  with the State on and the Department of Health in

          5  the context of the work that it does in managing

          6  managed care contracts would also be involved.

          7                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER WEINSTEIN: The

          8  vast majority, though, I mean, there was always the

          9  intention to assure a seamless approach to both

         10  Medicaid, CHP A and B and so far as the networks of

         11  providers are often, for the most part, overlapping

         12  and the health plans themselves, with some few

         13  exceptions, are akin to one another.  So, the effort

         14  has been there, but I think I agree with Ms. Cadogan

         15  that, in fact, the effort underfoot, I think, is to

         16  develop a more seamless approach to all public

         17  health insurers.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER MENDEZ: Thank you very

         19  much to the two of you for answering my questions.

         20                 EXECUTIVE DEPUTY COMMISSIONER

         21  CADOGAN: Thank you very much.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA: Thank you very

         23  much, Council Member.  Before we move on to the next

         24  questioner, I just have a question and a statement.

         25  A couple of years ago, Council Member John Liu
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          2  passed a bill in the City Council requiring that all

          3  documents coming out of the City have to be in

          4  multiple languages, the most predominant languages

          5  that are spoken and read in the City.  Following up

          6  on Council Member Mendez's question about Hands on

          7  Health Guide to public schools, I know that in areas

          8  such as Washington Heights and areas in Flushing and

          9  certain areas in the Bronx and in the Lower East

         10  Side you still have a huge immigrant population that

         11  does not speak English, so I think it's imperative

         12  to get this information translated into other

         13  languages so that, therefore, parents can find out

         14  what resources are available.  It just ties in to

         15  the fact that there's a huge immigrant population

         16  that's concerned about whether or not they're going

         17  to be denied residency or citizenship because of

         18  taking part in public health programs and if it's in

         19  their languages, then they'll understand it.  If

         20  they don't understand what they're reading or what

         21  they're seeing, obviously they're not going to have

         22  the right information in hand.  So I would just urge

         23  that we get this stuff translated into appropriate

         24  languages as soon as possible so that people can

         25  actually understand what they're reading and seeing.
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          2                 EXECUTIVE DEPUTY COMMISSIONER

          3  CADOGAN: Just to your point, Council Member, I

          4  recognize that the point you're making with regard

          5  to Hands on Health and we will be looking at that as

          6  we take it forward into new editions.  You should

          7  know, however, pursuant to the first piece of

          8  legislation that this new Council passed, Local Law

          9  1 and the first legislation passed by the Mayor,

         10  there is a public health insurance brochure that is

         11  available in seven languages that is cast through

         12  the Department of Education and many other agencies

         13  that provides information to families about public

         14  health insurance so we are cognizant of the need to

         15  make this information available on a broad scale to

         16  New Yorkers who speak different languages.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA:  I do believe

         18  there was also an executive order that Hiram

         19  Monserrate put forward with the Mayor's office, I

         20  think it's Executive Order No. 41 that was

         21  presented. How much outreach does that brochure that

         22  you're talking about reach?  How many people does

         23  that reach in comparison to the Hands on Health?

         24                 EXECUTIVE DEPUTY COMMISSIONER

         25  CADOGAN: That brochure is circulated with
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          2  applications that are distributed by a variety of

          3  City agencies, so it circulates quite broadly in the

          4  distribution of applications or in context of

          5  requests for applications from New Yorkers.  Several

          6  thousand of those brochures are circulated each

          7  year.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA: Okay.  Next we

          9  have Council Member Helen Foster and after her we

         10  have Council Member Arroyo and Council Member

         11  Dickens.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER FOSTER: Thank you.

         13  Good morning.  Forgive me if it was touched upon,

         14  because I did arrive late, but before I get there,

         15  let me ask a point of clarification.  This manual

         16  right here is basically to the school staff, so,

         17  Administrators, Principals, such like this.

         18                 EXECUTIVE DEPUTY COMMISSIONER

         19  CADOGAN: Parent coordinators.  School health staff.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER DICKENS: Right.  We're

         21  not looking for this document as the conduit of

         22  information for the parents. Correct?

         23                 EXECUTIVE DEPUTY COMMISSIONER

         24  CADOGAN: Not directly, although staff can, perhaps,

         25  copy pages of those for parents, but it's really
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          2  meant to be an aid for the staff.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER FOSTER: Okay.  And the

          4  documents that are actually for the parents that you

          5  mentioned to Council Member Mendez and Council

          6  Member Rivera are in multiple languages?

          7                 EXECUTIVE DEPUTY COMMISSIONER

          8  CADOGAN: They are indeed.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER FOSTER: Okay.  I just

         10  needed that clarified for me.  One place that I

         11  would suggest that I don't know if it's come up is

         12  the Council office themselves.  My council office, I

         13  hold five monthly meetings per month, yes, that's

         14  why they're monthly.  Five meetings a month with

         15  different constituent groups, which is a perfect

         16  place to get out the information and, just people

         17  coming in to receive assistance, so I have an

         18  information table, which that is one of the places

         19  we can look to, and also partnering with Council

         20  Members to maybe do, community meetings, the same

         21  way we try to inform the community about the earned

         22  income tax credit and things that are available that

         23  we may be missing in the schools or the faith- based

         24  organizations.  That's just a suggestion.

         25                 My question specifically has to do

                                                            59

          1  COMMITTEE ON HEALTH

          2  with re-enrollment and recertification because I

          3  know with PHSPs, one month they'll get 300 new

          4  enrollees but they'll get 400 that fell off the

          5  roll.  So you're not seeing an increase and so,

          6  sometimes numbers can be deceiving.  The process for

          7  recertification, and I from my other life I've seen

          8  it many times where it is at the point that someone

          9  comes in for their appointment that they find when

         10  the Medicaid number or the CHP number is punched in

         11  that they are actually no longer eligible.  Have we

         12  worked out some of the difficulties in number one,

         13  getting people recertified, I know you mentioned

         14  that what you've been able to do is when the

         15  recertification is near the last appointment period

         16  working with that, but in terms of the documents,

         17  especially, I believe with CHP Part A, there's

         18  certain payroll stubs or documents that are needed

         19  specifically for re- certification.

         20                 EXECUTIVE DEPUTY COMMISSIONER

         21  CADOGAN: MICSA has spent a great deal of time in

         22  this year, working to improve the mail renewal

         23  recertification process.  As you may be aware, the

         24  process has gone from a face-to-face process to a

         25  mail renewal process and HRA/MICSA has spent a great
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          2  deal of time in making sure that the renewal package

          3  is a package that speaks of importance to families.

          4  That the instructions in the renewal package are

          5  clear. That families know what kind of information

          6  they need to share to reflect changes either in

          7  income, or other kinds of changes in their status.

          8  So, it's a constant improvement process that's going

          9  on with the mail renewal process.

         10                 The other point that you made is the

         11  ability to use the encounter between a patient and a

         12  provider to facilitate timely renewal and that is

         13  the pilot effort that has now started at the Health

         14  and Hospitals Corporation done with Elmhurst

         15  Hospital and Woodhull and then now expanded to three

         16  more hospitals.  We would hope as that model becomes

         17  mature that we could take that across to other

         18  hospital sites and perhaps other provider sites

         19  where we could, as I said, facilitate

         20  recertification in the same way we facilitate

         21  enrollment.

         22                 The managed care plans and the PHSP

         23  also invest a great deal of their resources and

         24  MICSA has provided information to them on a bulletin

         25  board that is available to the enrollment brokers so
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          2  that they are aware of the recertification cycle and

          3  can go out to their members and assist them with

          4  getting their packages in in a timely way.  So there

          5  is a concerted effort to try to maintain continuous

          6  coverage.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER FOSTER: I know that

          8  it's not an easy process, in that mails, reminders

          9  and people still, for whatever reason, just kind of

         10  flake when it comes to that.  Just went out of my

         11  head that quickly.  What is, it's something you just

         12  said, hold on.  My grandmother used to say, "If you

         13  can't remember it must be a lie." But I really

         14  wasn't lying.  Let me move to the second part of my

         15  question.

         16                 What type of inservicing or training

         17  do you have for managed care plans.  Because I know,

         18  for example, on 170th and Jerome, you'll see tons of

         19  the mobile vans getting people to sign up, and I

         20  know that sometimes we get a large thrust of people

         21  signing up and you get either, "I didn't know what I

         22  was signing up for," and that's how I think you get

         23  into the problem that Council Member Mendez was

         24  talking about where the child is enrolled in one

         25  plan and the parent is in another.  Is there some
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          2  type of uniform in-service that is mandatory for all

          3  the managed care plans and regulations that they

          4  have to follow in terms of enrolling participants in

          5  managed care plans, whatever it is.

          6                 EXECUTIVE DEPUTY COMMISSIONER

          7  CADOGAN: There's both training and education

          8  provided, both on the State level, which is the

          9  primary payer in the managed care program, but also

         10  on the City level, and certainly enforcement through

         11  a collaboration between the City and the State.  So

         12  I'm going to let Assistant Commissioner Weinstein

         13  speak to that enforcement effort.

         14                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER JOYCE

         15  WEINSTEIN: As Ms. Cadogan was saying, the issue of

         16  facilitated enrollment, there are a number of

         17  protocols and MICSA and the State do take a large

         18  part and take a lead role in ensuring there's

         19  uniformity in terms of how the implementation of

         20  those protocols.  Our office is actually responsible

         21  for also ensuring and working with the Medicaid

         22  managed care plans on their marketing activities and

         23  enrollment activities to ensure that they are

         24  appropriately done and that people have informed

         25  choices.  A number of health plans right now are
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          2  actually using their outreach vans to do more than

          3  simply enroll, but actually using them to help

          4  people re- certify, so it's a member services

          5  function in addition to a marketing enrollment

          6  function, but we also oversee that to make sure,

          7  again, that information is appropriately provided.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER FOSTER: Okay.  I

          9  remembered now. With the recertification, is there a

         10  grace period?  So that, if in fact, for some reason

         11  I was missed at my last encounter, I received the

         12  papers, didn't open the envelope, do I get any grace

         13  period or is it a strict cut- off and then I have to

         14  re- enroll?

         15                 EXECUTIVE DEPUTY COMMISSIONER

         16  CADOGAN: There is a grace period that flows from a

         17  date that is approximately held for the end of their

         18  renewal cycle.  I do not want to misrepresent what

         19  that grace period is, so we can certainly provide

         20  that information to you.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER FOSTER: No, I was just

         22  more concerned with the fact if there is one.

         23  Because I know, a mother could be overwhelmed, get

         24  the mail and just not trigger, "it's time for me to

         25  renew," and I would hate for it to lapse so that if
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          2  I get to bring my child to an appointment or come to

          3  the appointment myself and that's when I find out I

          4  haven't done my renewal, is it a possibility for me

          5  to keep that appointment and then be able to do the

          6  recertification or renewal at that time?

          7                 EXECUTIVE DEPUTY COMMISSIONER

          8  CADOGAN: It might depend, again, on the length of

          9  the grace period and when in time that family comes

         10  to a provider, or otherwise may engage at a

         11  community Medicaid office or other drop in location

         12  where they can go and try to address their late

         13  renewal.  But I do want to try to provide more

         14  accurate information to you following this hearing.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER FOSTER: Great.  Thank

         16  you.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA: Thank you very

         18  much Council Member Foster.  Next we have Council

         19  Member Arroyo but before that we've been joined by

         20  Councilwoman Gale Brewer.  Council Member Arroyo.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER ARROYO: Thank you, Mr.

         22  Chairman. Good morning, yes, it's still morning.

         23  First, I'd like to thank the Office of City- wide

         24  Health Insurance Access for assisting my office with

         25  a group of home care providers in the community who
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          2  are desperate for health insurance and we had a

          3  couple of sessions in the Bronx where they were

          4  given information and, hopefully, ended out [sic]

          5  With individuals opting to enroll.  Although, some

          6  came back to me to complain about the cost of the

          7  monthly premiums that they would be expected to pay.

          8    When we're talking about families that are making

          9  under $30,000 a year don't qualify for Medicaid and

         10  have to chose between food and healthcare, we come

         11  back to the age old question, "Which is more

         12  important?"

         13                 Of the families that do not re-

         14  certify, either individual or family, do we know how

         15  many of those cost is a problem for?

         16                 EXECUTIVE DEPUTY COMMISSIONER

         17  CADOGAN: We don't have data with regard to whether

         18  the reason for failure to timely re-certify is

         19  because of cost, whether it's co- payments or other

         20  requirements within the Medicaid managed care

         21  program.  Those are some of the things that we would

         22  like to have a greater understanding of as we can

         23  better target the message about the importance of

         24  renewal but we don't have that kind of data.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER ARROYO: What is the
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          2  Agency's plan for trying to understand that?  Is

          3  there a plan?

          4                 EXECUTIVE DEPUTY COMMISSIONER

          5  CADOGAN: We, through a Commonwealth funded project

          6  that we have done in East Harlem and Bushwick called

          7  Access to Coverage and Care have spent some time

          8  looking at both health insurance coverage trends for

          9  about 15,000 students in those two school districts

         10  and we are now starting to look at reasons for

         11  lapses in coverage and trying to gather through data

         12  and information that we have accessible to us the

         13  actual reasons that are codified in any event of why

         14  families were failed to renew or otherwise lapsed in

         15  coverage.  That work may give us some initial

         16  information about what choices or what are some of

         17  the obstacles that we need to address both with

         18  families and within internal systems that would be

         19  more helpful in facilitating continuous coverage.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER ARROYO: You mentioned

         21  Brooklyn?  Only Brooklyn?  I'm from the Bronx, so, I

         22  want to hear you say you're going to do it in the

         23  Bronx.  On the ground level, where we're at, cost is

         24  a factor for families not recertifying.  How we

         25  understand that and what we do about it I think is
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          2  important and the sooner the better because when we

          3  chose between feeding the family or buying

          4  insurance, we are going to end up in the emergency

          5  room at Lincoln Hospital and the taxpayers are going

          6  to end up footing the bill for it because somebody

          7  is going to pay for that visit.  So, this is

          8  probably not something that can be solved overnight

          9  but it is something we need to pay attention to.

         10  Because as long as we don't look at it from that

         11  perspective, we're going to wish we can do a better

         12  job and not be able to because our families are just

         13  not going to be able to do it.

         14                 EXECUTIVE DEPUTY COMMISSIONER

         15  CADOGAN: Council Member, I respect your point, and

         16  we will acknowledge with you that cost is always a

         17  factor.  We find it to be a predominant factor for

         18  small businesses and individual entrepreneurs like

         19  the ones that you mentioned and certainly it is for

         20  families as they're juggling the various financial

         21  demands upon them.  Some of the legislative agenda

         22  that I mention in my testimony goes to trying to

         23  address that cost factor, particularly as we talk

         24  about expanding CHP B coverage and possibly taking

         25  the eligibility to a higher level. Also, looking at
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          2  some of the premium costs in the CHP B program. It's

          3  broadly available for free or low- cost right now

          4  but then at a certain level in the program the

          5  premium cost goes steeply up to a full- cost of $140

          6  or more and families with multiple children, that

          7  becomes quite a burden.  So, if we can look at not

          8  only expanding possibly the eligibility but looking

          9  at sliding the scale of premiums to make it more

         10  accessible to the families you're talking about and

         11  also looking at Healthy NY and expanding eligibility

         12  access there as well for small businesses, taking

         13  that eligibility standard up to make it available to

         14  more businesses who have a higher cost of living and

         15  a higher cost of doing business in New York City.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER ARROYO: And now a more

         17  focused question on children and this City's

         18  efforts.  In your testimony, you indicate that there

         19  are about 200,000 children eligible for public

         20  health insurance?

         21                 EXECUTIVE DEPUTY COMMISSIONER

         22  CADOGAN: Correct.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER ARROYO: Do we know

         24  where they're at and what's our campaign or approach

         25  to getting at those, rather than sitting in the
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          2  lobby of the hospital and you hit or miss.  If

          3  you're lucky, you get one that's eligible.  If

          4  you're not, then you've wasted somebody's oxygen.

          5  Do we know where these 200,000 children are?

          6                 EXECUTIVE DEPUTY COMMISSIONER

          7  CADOGAN: Again, we've had the benefit of working on

          8  a project Access to Coverage and Care with funding

          9  from the Commonwealth Fund to really look at how we

         10  use schools as the most effective resource for

         11  identifying and enrolling children who are eligible

         12  for public health insurance and through that

         13  project, we have been able to look at data that

         14  suggests to us that a good proportion, if not half,

         15  of that 200,000 children are among those attending

         16  public schools.  Hence, when we talk about moving to

         17  targeted enrollment efforts, we're looking to

         18  explore building structures that would allow us to

         19  use data systems to really identify those children

         20  who may not be covered by public health insurance,

         21  may not be covered by private health insurance and

         22  hence are really the potentially the uninsured group

         23  and being able to connect those parents by virtue of

         24  contact through letter or otherwise with enrollers

         25  who can assist them in changing their child's
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          2  status.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER ARROYO: So right now

          4  we don't have the capacity to identify Johnny who

          5  lives on 138th Street and Willis Avenue.

          6                 EXECUTIVE DEPUTY COMMISSIONER

          7  CADOGAN: We are currently working on solidifying

          8  those systems.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER ARROYO: Thank you.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA: Next we have

         11  Council Member Dickens and after her Council Member

         12  Brewer.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER DICKENS: Thank you so

         14  much, Mr. Chair, and thank you Commissioner and Ms.

         15  Cadogan for bearing with me.  I know I had a lot of

         16  questions earlier.  But as a result of some of my

         17  colleagues questions I have one or two other

         18  questions.

         19                 Your answer to me earlier was in

         20  Northern Manhattan the hospitals have not been

         21  included as of yet, Harlem, East Harlem --

         22                 EXECUTIVE DEPUTY COMMISSIONER

         23  CADOGAN: In the recertification effort.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER DICKENS: Yes.  My

         25  colleague mentioned about HPD.  HPD provides a
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          2  management course as a requirement for managers of

          3  all their buildings.  In my neighborhoods, in

          4  Northern Manhattan, there are quite a few buildings

          5  that are managed by HPD managers.  Would you

          6  consider having that process part of that management

          7  course so that the managers would be able to at

          8  least give the mailing, recert application, or

          9  assist tenants.

         10                 EXECUTIVE DEPUTY COMMISSIONER

         11  CADOGAN: We certainly would be willing to explore

         12  the logistics of the management course and see what

         13  might be appropriate in the context of who attends

         14  and what their engagement is with those who are

         15  eligible either for public health insurance or for

         16  some of the special options of private health

         17  insurance.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER DICKENS: Would you get

         19  back to this Committee with that definitive

         20  information as to where you are, once you begin

         21  contacting, and when you do your initial contact

         22  with HPD, I'd like to know how long it takes for

         23  that process to start.

         24                 EXECUTIVE DEPUTY COMMISSIONER

         25  CADOGAN: We will follow up with you Councilwoman.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER DICKENS: Thank you.

          3  Also, do you include the community boards, because

          4  they have monthly full board meetings?  Are they

          5  included as part, do they have the applications and

          6  the recertifications at the community boards, where

          7  they could be available to the people who come

          8  there?

          9                 EXECUTIVE DEPUTY COMMISSIONER

         10  CADOGAN: The community boards certainly have access

         11  to Access NYC, which is now broadly available as a

         12  web- based tool, we have in the past provided

         13  information to community board staff and certainly

         14  the Local Law 1 brochure is available to the

         15  community boards, which provides broad information

         16  about eligibility and access for public health

         17  insurance.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER DICKENS: Have you

         19  considered maybe speaking before some of the

         20  community boards directly and at full board meetings

         21  so that the community could also personally see and

         22  hear from you?

         23                 EXECUTIVE DEPUTY COMMISSIONER

         24  CADOGAN: We have had the opportunity in the past and

         25  would continue to do so in the future to speak to
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          2  community boards, their health committees, around

          3  the options that are available for the uninsured.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER DICKENS: Pardon me,

          5  but did I hear you say that you did go?

          6                 EXECUTIVE DEPUTY COMMISSIONER

          7  CADOGAN: Yes.  Yes we have.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER DICKENS: Would you be

          9  able to let the Council Members know when you are in

         10  their specific districts?

         11                 EXECUTIVE DEPUTY COMMISSIONER

         12  CADOGAN: We would most certainly do that.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER DICKENS:  All right.

         14  And lastly, the recertification process, did I hear

         15  an answer to Council Member Foster that you have to

         16  provide a paystub?  Did I hear that?

         17                 EXECUTIVE DEPUTY COMMISSIONER

         18  CADOGAN: You do have to provide information on

         19  income in the recertification response.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER DICKENS: But not

         21  necessarily a paystub.  The reason I'm asking this

         22  is because there are many, many persons,

         23  particularly immigrants, who are hired off the

         24  books, illegal, but still off the books, and we

         25  still have sweatshops here in New York City.
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          2                 EXECUTIVE DEPUTY COMMISSIONER

          3  CADOGAN: You have to provide a paystub or other kind

          4  of evidence of your regular pay status.  It can be a

          5  statement by your employer, it can be another

          6  documentation of your regular income but there must

          7  be some provided documentation with regard to income

          8  and there is a recognition for those who are

          9  independent workers or otherwise "off the books" in

         10  the context of the renewal process.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER DICKENS: What would be

         12  an example of what you would require because

         13  obviously if you're paid off the books your employer

         14  is not going to give you any written, a letter

         15  saying you work here at whatever dollar amount.  So,

         16  what would be acceptable to you.

         17                 EXECUTIVE DEPUTY COMMISSIONER

         18  CADOGAN: I think it best for me to get back with you

         19  with the range of items that are acceptable with

         20  regard to renewal.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER DICKENS: Would you

         22  please?  I'm sure the rest of my Committee Members

         23  would be interested in that information also.

         24                 EXECUTIVE DEPUTY COMMISSIONER

         25  CADOGAN: We'll provide that to the committee.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER DICKENS:  Thank you so

          3  much.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA: Thank you so

          5  much, Council Member.  Council Member Brewer.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: Thank you.

          7  I'm not on the Committee.  But I feel very strongly

          8  about trying to get young people in schools better

          9  healthcare, as I think we all do.  I've certainly

         10  toured a lot of schools, particularly trying to get

         11  more young people signed up for mental health

         12  services.  And so my question is, what exactly is

         13  the way in which you approach the schools and

         14  getting the information out and at the same time, do

         15  you work with the Health Department in trying to get

         16  more health services in the schools.  That's

         17  question number one.

         18                 The second is, is it possible to just

         19  take these and mail them to the voters?  I know even

         20  this morning I was in my district office and I guess

         21  an earlier version of this, by chance, there were

         22  like six or seven people coming in today, these

         23  happen to be adults, I don't know if they had

         24  families, children, looking for health insurance.

         25  It's everywhere, the need.  And that we have an
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          2  earlier version, I guess, of this material is very

          3  helpful. Often these are people, and I'm the biggest

          4  techie around, who don't have a computer, so Access

          5  NY isn't helpful to them.  So my question is, can we

          6  do a mailing with these?  It would take care of both

          7  adults and children.

          8                 EXECUTIVE DEPUTY COMMISSIONER

          9  CADOGAN: Let me respond to that piece of it first.

         10  The brochure that's available and that has been

         11  created in compliance with Local Law 1 which is a

         12  brochure that we will make available to the

         13  Committee is one that is sent out on a regular basis

         14  to those who are seeking applying for City services

         15  with a number of City Agencies or requesting

         16  applications from a number of City agencies.  So

         17  those are brochures who go out directly to consumers

         18  across the City.  We would certainly take the

         19  Council's assistance in distributing our Guide to

         20  Health Insurance for Small Business, the guide that

         21  you referenced.  That guide is also being made

         22  available on a regular basis through the State

         23  Department of Insurance to individuals who call the

         24  Healthy New York line from 12 downstate counties

         25  seeking information about health insurance for small
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          2  businesses.  So that is mailed out on a regular

          3  basis to a broad scale of businesses.

          4                 In terms of our work within schools

          5  to maximize opportunities for parents who have

          6  children who are uninsured or who are uninsured

          7  themselves, as I mentioned a bit earlier, that work

          8  goes on in the context of looking at opportunities

          9  to engage parents throughout the school year at a

         10  variety of activities and venues either through the

         11  school registration process in having facilitated

         12  enrollers available at school to assist parents,

         13  during high school fairs, where parents are trying

         14  to make decisions about high schools for their

         15  children, parent- teacher conferences, having

         16  enrollers available on parent- teacher conference

         17  nights again, and importuning on teachers to help

         18  with the channeling of parents to those resources as

         19  well, as I've indicated, working in a more targeted

         20  way as we go forward with Universal Pre- K programs

         21  to actually try to identify uninsured families and

         22  connect them to resources.  So that's the  --

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: Okay.  I mean,

         24  we do a huge education newsletter, so we will

         25  certainly put it, information, in there.  But I just
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          2  say that maybe you could work with those of us who

          3  are at all these events on a regular basis, because

          4  I don't see it.  Maybe it's there, but I just don't

          5  see it.  Your material is great.  I just don't think

          6  it gets out.  What you're talking about is good as a

          7  complaint driven system, or an inquiry based system

          8  and what I'm talking about is being more pro-

          9  active.  So anyway, we'd be glad to work with you.

         10                 EXECUTIVE DEPUTY COMMISSIONER

         11  CADOGAN: We welcome your assistance.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: Thank you.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA: Thank you very

         14  much Council Member Brewer.  We're on round three of

         15  the questioning.  I just wanted to ask you a

         16  question.  New businesses that register with the

         17  County Clerk's office or the City Clerk's office, do

         18  they receive any information on the health programs

         19  that they can provide to their new employees, like

         20  new businesses, so that way we can start catching

         21  them in the beginning?

         22                 EXECUTIVE DEPUTY COMMISSIONER

         23  CADOGAN: Well, I know that the City Clerk's office

         24  is one of the offices that is part of the group of

         25  offices providing the Local Law 1 brochure in the
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          2  context of their application process so I know that

          3  is available that way.  With regard to the Small

          4  Business Guide, the most voluminous distribution

          5  comes through the State Department of Insurance as

          6  it casts information down to businesses that call in

          7  to the Healthy NY line.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA: Okay.  Next we

          9  have Council Member Kendall Stewart and then Council

         10  Member Foster who have follow up questions.

         11                 EXECUTIVE DEPUTY COMMISSIONER

         12  CADOGAN: Let me add one thing to that Councilmember,

         13  I just remembered another Agency. The Department of

         14  Consumer Affairs.  We have done work over the past

         15  year with the Department of Consumer Affairs, one to

         16  make information available to those businesses are

         17  applying for licensure with the City and also to

         18  have on a number of occasions enrollers available to

         19  assist individuals to apply either for public health

         20  insurance or for Healthy NY which is one of the

         21  private options for Small Business or working

         22  individuals.  So, DCA is another Agency with whom we

         23  work to get to those kind of new, smaller

         24  businesses.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA: Thank you.
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          2  Council Member Stewart.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: I just have a

          4  follow- up because I'm a little disturbed here.  You

          5  said recertification and certification that usually

          6  they have to have paystubs and when you were

          7  questioned you couldn't tell us exactly what the

          8  alternatives we can use  --

          9                 EXECUTIVE DEPUTY COMMISSIONER

         10  CADOGAN: I don't want to misquote them, so I want to

         11  send that information to you, to the Committee so

         12  that you have accurate information.  It is paystubs

         13  and/or additional documentation with regard to one's

         14  income.  It's not, paystubs is not the only

         15  requirement  --

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: Do you have

         17  any idea what we use to recertify school lunch or

         18  food stamps, which is comparative?

         19                 EXECUTIVE DEPUTY COMMISSIONER

         20  CADOGAN: I am not sure if there is a recertification

         21  process for those programs as opposed to an annual

         22  application process, but right now I'm not going to

         23  speak to the comparability of those two processes.

         24  I understand where you're going Council Member is

         25  the hope that we could at some point rely on data
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          2  and information that's accessible to the City or the

          3  State for recertification and I would hope that we

          4  could get there but we're not quite there yet.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: I'm just

          6  concerned that we may have quite a number of people

          7  who are being denied the type of service that we

          8  want to reach out to these youngsters  --

          9                 EXECUTIVE DEPUTY COMMISSIONER

         10  CADOGAN: Again, Council Member, I think that's why

         11  we are spending time in looking at models for

         12  facilitated recertification to address assisting

         13  those very type of uninsured folks who are either at

         14  the cusp of falling off of coverage because of

         15  failure to renew or having failed to renew and

         16  making sure that they have the kind of package of

         17  information that will allow them to maintain

         18  continuous coverage both in the provider context and

         19  perhaps even in the school- based health center

         20  context.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: Mr. Chair, I

         22  would like to get the information as to what are the

         23  alternatives for paystubs that's being used.  When

         24  you do receive that information could you pass it on

         25  for me please, because it's very important.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA: Yes, as the

          3  Agency forward that information to the Health

          4  Committee and then we will distribute it out to the

          5  Members so that they have it at their disposal.

          6                 EXECUTIVE DEPUTY COMMISSIONER

          7  CADOGAN: Surely.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA: Next we have

          9  Council Member Foster.  Thank you very much Council

         10  Member.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER FOSTER: Thank you.

         12  Quickly, with foster care children or in shelters,

         13  does their Medicaid follow them, and so I would

         14  assume being in a managed care plan that only has

         15  coverage in Brooklyn but now I'm in a shelter in the

         16  Bronx or put in a foster care home in the Bronx, how

         17  does that work?

         18                 EXECUTIVE DEPUTY COMMISSIONER

         19  CADOGAN: I believe that both the foster care, and I

         20  will check this and make sure that I am accurate,

         21  both in the foster care setting and in the home

         22  setting that families who are eligible for Medicaid

         23  and enrolled in Medicaid are exempt from Medicaid

         24  managed care and are fee-for-service, so, thereby

         25  providing some flexibility in terms of their access
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          2  to providers as their living circumstances change.

          3  Both of those populations are populations that we

          4  work with, we do work with the Department of

          5  Homeless Services, another Agency that I was

          6  reminded of in the HealthStat context in terms of

          7  their issues with accessing public health insurance

          8  and with the foster care population we do work with

          9  ACS in looking at the issues for those children who

         10  both graduate out of coverage at age 19- 18 as well

         11  as recertification issues, which we are going to be

         12  doing some pilot efforts on facilitated

         13  recertification with them as well.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER FOSTER: And the last

         15  question, premium or a fee is only for the CHP Part

         16  A or is it A and B.

         17                 EXECUTIVE DEPUTY COMMISSIONER

         18  CADOGAN: CHP A is free.  CHP B has a scale of

         19  premiums for individuals who, I believe, whose

         20  income is under 160% of the poverty level.  They

         21  have no premiums.  From 160, I believe, to 220% the

         22  premium is $9 per child.  From 220 to 250% is $15

         23  per child and then it goes to what's called

         24  full-cost buy-in, which can be upwards of $140 or

         25  more per child.  So, as I mentioned earlier, some of
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          2  the issues with regard to cost and affordability,

          3  even in a program that's available to children, and

          4  particularly undocumented children, there's a need

          5  to look at that fee scale between $15 and $140 and

          6  looking at graduating that for a variety of income

          7  levels.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER FOSTER: Thank you.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA: It seems that we

         10  may have run out of questions, so thank you very

         11  much for your participation in today's first

         12  hearing.  We will excuse you and we only one more

         13  person to testify today.  Thank you very much,

         14  ladies.

         15                 EXECUTIVE DEPUTY COMMISSIONER

         16  CADOGAN: Thank you for your interest and your

         17  assistance.  Thank you.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA: Thank you.  The

         19  next person to testify, and I hope I do not, you

         20  know, mispronounce your name, is Kinda Serafi.

         21  Thank you very much for your patience.  Just state

         22  your name for the record and you may proceed with

         23  your testimony.

         24                 MS. SERAFI: Yes, thank you very much.

         25    It's Kinda Serafi with the Children's Defense Fund
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          2  and good morning.  Well, almost good afternoon.  I

          3  am the Senior Policy Associate at the Children's

          4  Defense Fund- New York.

          5                 I would first like to thank the

          6  Committee Chair, Councilman Joel Rivera and the City

          7  Council Health Committee Members for hosting this

          8  important hearing today and affording the Children's

          9  Defense Fund- New York the opportunity to submit

         10  testimony.

         11                 As you know, New York has made

         12  tremendous progress in recent years in increasing

         13  the availability of public health insurance for

         14  children and families.  Through a range of

         15  enrollment and renewal simplifications, program

         16  enhancements, systems improvements and the

         17  implementation of facilitated enrollment, New York

         18  has created a more rational and effective health

         19  insurance system for working families.

         20                 We applaud New York City, the Human

         21  Resources Administration, the HealthStat Initiative

         22  and the Office of City-wide Health Insurance Access

         23  for taking the lead on many of these simplifications

         24  and improvements.  New York City, as you know, has

         25  been a leader State-wide in promoting easier access
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          2  for families through various initiatives and pilots.

          3    Just for example, mail- in renewal was introduced

          4  and piloted in New York City by HRA before the

          5  state- wide had implemented their mail- in renewal.

          6                 HRA has initiated the EDITS

          7  demonstration project, which has allowed selected

          8  PCAP programs, that's the Pre- Natal Care Assistance

          9  Programs, to gather documents and transmit

         10  information electronically.  HRA has even conducted

         11  a pilot project in 2001 that automatically enrolled

         12  children who were already enrolled into food stamps

         13  into Medicaid resulting in 15,000 children receiving

         14  coverage.  Additionally, HRA/OCHIA have made

         15  sustaining community partnerships and conducting

         16  outreach one of their highest priorities.  These are

         17  obviously just a few examples of the way HRA has

         18  made a commitment to increasing enrollment and

         19  access for New York City children.

         20                 These strategies have helped decrease

         21  the number of uninsured children significantly.  In

         22  New York City, the rates of uninsured children

         23  declined from 15% to 11% between 2000 and 2004. This

         24  is largely attributed to an increase in public

         25  coverage.
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          2                 However, our work is far from

          3  complete.  An estimated 384,000 children and teens,

          4  state- wide, are uninsured. 70% of these children,

          5  or 268,000 estimated, are eligible for either Child

          6  Health Plus A or B, but remain uninsured.  The

          7  remaining estimated 116,000 children who are

          8  uninsured, live in families whose incomes fall above

          9  the 250% of the federal poverty level.  Notably,

         10  more than half or these uninsured children, or 53%,

         11  live in New York City.

         12                 The vast majority of uninsured

         13  children live in working families.  77% of the

         14  uninsured are working or dependents of workers.  75%

         15  are school- aged, that means that they are between

         16  the ages of six and 18 and 90% of these uninsured

         17  children are U.S. Citizens.

         18                 We believe that the political

         19  landscape makes this an opportune time to address

         20  how New York can comprehensively cover all children

         21  in New York State.  In his State of the State

         22  address, Governor Spitzer has pledged to cover all

         23  of New York's uninsured children.  Now, we believe,

         24  is the time to translate this pledge into reality.

         25                 And so with that we would like to
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          2  quickly share with you our proposals for how we

          3  believe New York State can cover every child and

          4  adolescent.  It's a two component proposal.  The

          5  first is to expand eligibility levels under Child

          6  Health Plus B to children and families with incomes

          7  up to 500% of the federal poverty level. The second

          8  component is to simplify and streamline the existing

          9  health insurance programs in order to make it more

         10  accessible for families to obtain and maintain

         11  coverage.

         12                 Directing your attention to the first

         13  component, expanding eligibility levels of Child

         14  Health Plus B from 250% to 500% of the federal

         15  poverty level will reach the 116,000 children who

         16  are not currently eligible for either A or B because

         17  their incomes fall above 250%.  Ms. Cadogan

         18  addressed this in quite a bit of detail and what we

         19  believe is that this expansion is needed to address

         20  the large cliff that currently exists between the

         21  subsidized coverage premiums of $9 to $15 per child

         22  per month and those of the full buy- in program

         23  which exists above 250% and that can range from $89

         24  to $180 per month, per child, depending on the

         25  county and the plan.  We believe, and we know, that
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          2  this cost is prohibitive for most moderate income

          3  families and is resulted in keeping many families

          4  out of the buy- in option.  In fact, very few

          5  families are actually participating in the buy- in

          6  option above 250% of the federal poverty level.

          7                 Under this coverage proposal,

          8  families with incomes up to 500% of the federal

          9  poverty will be eligible for subsidized coverage on

         10  a sliding scale basis, which would eliminate large

         11  cliffs in family contribution and ensure that

         12  coverage is affordable to all families.  That is

         13  detailed in a chart on, I believe it is page five on

         14  the testimony that was submitted.

         15                 Moving into the second component of

         16  our proposal, and this has also been address in the

         17  question and answer period with Ms. Cadogan, is that

         18  we believe that there are a series of barriers that

         19  prevent families from accessing coverage.  In order

         20  to reach to estimated 268,000 children who are

         21  eligible for A or B but are not enrolled, we propose

         22  to simplify and streamline the program applications

         23  and renewal procedures so that we can ensure full

         24  participation.

         25                 The first proposal that we submit is
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          2  to eliminate documentation requirements that are not

          3  federally mandated at both application and renewal.

          4  This would include income and residency. The only

          5  federally mandated documents that are now required

          6  are citizenship and immigration status.  We would

          7  hope to do this by increasing technological capacity

          8  to allow for third party verification.  If I may

          9  just take a step and answer the questions that you

         10  were asking Ms. Cadogan about what sort of income

         11  documentation is required, for the most part,

         12  evidence has to be reported.  There is only a very

         13  small allowance to allow for self attestation of

         14  income.  For most part, even for people who are

         15  being paid off the books or being self- employed, so

         16  for example, they're selling flowers on the street,

         17  and they have no documentation, they have to come up

         18  with a letterhead that shows that this is their

         19  income.  On very small allowances they can self

         20  attest but that has been now a case-by-case basis

         21  and that actually has to be submitted to HRA as a

         22  question of, I'm very sorry but this is the only

         23  thing I can provide is my self- attestation.  So we

         24  believe that this is a huge barrier for families,

         25  both at application and at renewal.
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          2                 We believe another simplification

          3  proposal is to eliminate the face- to- face

          4  interview requirement for Medicaid. There's no face-

          5  to- face interview requirement for Child Health Plus

          6  B.  Significantly, New York is one of only six

          7  states that still mandate a face- to- face interview

          8  for children and one of 15 states that require it

          9  for adults.  New York has been able to accommodate

         10  this requirement with the existence of the

         11  facilitated enrollment program, because they meet

         12  the face- to- face interview requirement outside of

         13  HRA.  Regardless, it is still a burden on thousands

         14  of working families who are forced to take time off

         15  work, which is most often unpaid time, to meet this

         16  face- to- face requirement.

         17                 We also propose establishing

         18  automatic transfers at renewal between programs for

         19  children.  Right now, as it exists, children who are

         20  transitioning between Child Health Plus A and B or

         21  between Child Health Plus B to adult Medicaid and

         22  Family Health Plus frequently experience gaps in

         23  coverage because the programs are administered by

         24  different systems.  WMS operates the Medicaid

         25  programs, The Kids System operates Child Health Plus
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          2  B.  These two systems do not communicate on any

          3  level and so when children have to transfer between

          4  programs, they often face a gap or total loss in

          5  coverage and we propose a behind the scenes

          6  administrative transition to eliminate this gap.

          7                 CDF New York also proposes that New

          8  York implement a streamlined and simplified renewal

          9  process in order to ensure that families maintain

         10  their coverage after they've gone through so much

         11  effort to actually access their coverage.  Despite

         12  significant renewal simplifications, the process is

         13  still confusing for many families.  New York City

         14  HRA has recently reported that approximately 30% of

         15  Medicaid beneficiaries did not return their

         16  recertification on time and many of those that did

         17  respond, that remaining 70%, did not correctly

         18  complete the process.  This has been reported

         19  because they are unable to document their income and

         20  because, there's been two reasons: They've been

         21  unable to document their income correctly and

         22  they've not signed in the correct place.           And

         23  also, if I may, answer a question that was addressed

         24  because it is relevant here, there is a grace

         25  period, that Councilwoman Foster had raised.  The
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          2  grace period is 14 days. So, they are allowed to

          3  submit their recertification.  If they do

          4  incomplete, so let's say that they haven't submitted

          5  their documentation because they have to have four

          6  consecutive weeks of pay, so that could be two

          7  paychecks or four paychecks and that's oftentimes

          8  very confusing.  So if they don't submit that within

          9  the 14 days, they lose their coverage.  This has

         10  been newly implemented as of December 2006.  In the

         11  last year, when mail- in renewal was being newly

         12  implemented, they had allowed that if income wasn't

         13  being documented correctly they said, HRA was being

         14  very gracious and said that that's okay because we

         15  know that mail- in renewal is new and difficult.

         16  But since December 2006 we have seen that this new

         17  deferral process is causing many problems for many

         18  families.

         19                 Our simplification proposal that we

         20  suggest would allow for a self- attestation of

         21  income and anything that has changed, because that's

         22  actually how it is now.  At renewal, you don't have

         23  to re- document everything like you do at

         24  application, you just have to document your income

         25  and anything that has changed.  We would say,
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          2  eliminate this documentation requirement, allow for

          3  self- attestation and ask beneficiaries to return a

          4  shortened form, which inquires whether they still

          5  wish to receive health insurance and if they do, if

          6  any eligibility has changed.

          7                 We would also call for a 60 day grace

          8  period for those appear Medicaid eligible pending

          9  completion of their additional required

         10  documentation.  I'm sorry, no documentation,

         11  information.

         12                 Another proposal that we believe

         13  would make a significant impact is to allow for

         14  linking application and renewal processes for

         15  similar means- tested programs.  This would not only

         16  simplify the process for families but it would

         17  reduce administrative costs to HRA.  For example, we

         18  know that according to census data, an estimated

         19  525,000 families in New York City who have children

         20  are enrolled in both food stamps and the Medicaid

         21  program.  We would propose ex parte review at

         22  renewal and what we would hope is that information

         23  that is obtained for eligibility purposes for the

         24  food stamp program would be used to automatically

         25  extend coverage for the Medicaid program for 12
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          2  months.  This would eliminate the need to send a

          3  renewal application and a family would not be

          4  required to take any additional action to maintain

          5  their coverage.

          6                 Of course, we believe that any idea

          7  on any simplification proposal that we support for

          8  children should also be extended to their parents.

          9  Research has shown that a highly effective way to

         10  increase a child's access to coverage is to ensure

         11  that the coverage of their parents is there.  We,

         12  therefore, propose that adult Medicaid and Family

         13  Health Plus programs be simplified and streamlined

         14  by establishing continuous eligibility for adults as

         15  it exists for children, eliminating the asset test

         16  as it exists for children, and rescinding the

         17  fingerprinting requirement for adults that we fear

         18  will be soon implemented by HRA.  We also propose

         19  eliminating documentation requirements that are not

         20  federally mandated and eliminating the face-to-face

         21  interview requirement.

         22                 And finally, in order to increase

         23  access, we propose increasing funding for the very

         24  successful facilitated enrollment program.

         25  Facilitated enrollment program has become the
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          2  backbone of the New York enrollment system for

          3  Medicaid, Family Health Plus and Child Health Plus.

          4  State- wide, more than 50% of the applications are

          5  completed by facilitated enrollers.  Since 2000,

          6  community based organizations have helped more than

          7  800,000 children and teens and adults enroll.  That

          8  is not even counting the health plans' significant

          9  impact in enrolling children and families.

         10  Facilitated enrollers state- wide speak more than 40

         11  languages and they hold evening and weekend hours

         12  for working parents.  Clearly, facilitated

         13  enrollment is one of the most effective tools we

         14  have for finding and enrolling the most hard to

         15  reach children and families.  An expansion of this

         16  successful program will help us reach even further

         17  into our communities to find those who are eligible,

         18  yet uninsured.

         19                 We are extremely appreciative, the

         20  Children's Defense Fund, to the New York City

         21  Council for your vision and commitment in hosting

         22  this important hearing and continuing to focus on

         23  the critical issue of health coverage.  All of us

         24  are deeply grateful to you for your leadership and

         25  look forward to working with you in partnership as
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          2  we ensure that every child in New York receives the

          3  health coverage they need and deserve to have a

          4  healthy start in life.

          5                 Thank you.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA: Thank you very

          7  much.  Council Member Stewart has a question.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: Thank you,

          9  Mr. Chair.  I just want to follow up on something

         10  that you said and want some clarity.  The adult

         11  Medicaid.  An adult has been, go through the process

         12  of ineligible.  Does it transform to the children

         13  directly without getting the requirements?

         14                 MS. SERAFI: No, because the

         15  children's eligibility levels are much higher than

         16  adults.  So, the maximum that Family Health Plus

         17  goes to, there's adult Medicaid, and then it goes

         18  above adult Medicaid is the Family Health Plus

         19  program.  And that basically, the income eligibility

         20  level is higher than adult Medicaid.  That goes up

         21  to about 160% of the federal poverty level.

         22  Children's health insurance coverage goes up to 250.

         23    So there is a huge, it is very possible that a

         24  child could be enrolled but a parent won't.  And

         25  that we see oftentimes, especially with undocumented
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          2  children, because undocumented children are eligible

          3  for Child Health Plus B but their parents are not

          4  eligible for any program.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: In our

          6  insurance system, if a parent is insured, generally,

          7  by contrast, the child will be insured.

          8                 MS. SERAFI: Well, for the most part.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: So, I want to

         10  know, if you find that the parent is eligible for

         11  Medicaid, would one have to provide information

         12  again to just to get that child certified?

         13                 MS. SERAFI: No, because we have a

         14  unified application that allows you to apply for

         15  your whole family at the same time, so there's no

         16  separate application.  There is a possibility for a

         17  separate, if you only want to apply for your child,

         18  but if you want to go in, you've submitted your

         19  documentation, your child will be included, if you

         20  apply for it, if you put your child's name down.

         21  Their income eligibility is included with the parent

         22  and they will be considered eligible.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: Right.  The

         24  other question I had, basically, you heard our

         25  concern about paystub requirement. What have you
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          2  found with the system, the other requirements that

          3  may be used in lieu of the paystub?

          4                 MS. SERAFI: This is something we've

          5  been very concerned with and we've actually been

          6  working with HRA because there is an allowance for

          7  self- attestation of income.  What that means is if

          8  you are unable to document you're income, you can

          9  self-attest to it.  But that is a very small

         10  allowance and HRA has moved in the direction that

         11  they are feeling that that is not being used as a

         12  last resort, which is the way it should be.  And

         13  they are feeling that people are abusing the self-

         14  attestion of income, so they've tightened the

         15  reigns.  Now, you need either a letterhead, or you

         16  need some sort of documentation that this is your

         17  income. We find that this is extremely hurtful for

         18  self- employed people, we find it's very difficult

         19  for people who get paid off the books, and we've

         20  advocated strongly to increase the allowance of self

         21  attestation.  The compromise that we have received

         22  is a good one, which is it will be considered on a

         23  case- by- case basis which means that if the family

         24  is lucky enough to be working with a facilitated

         25  enroller, the facilitated enroller can contact HRA
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          2  and say, "I'd really like in this particular case, I

          3  have no proof of income, that HRA would concede to

          4  that and allow self- attestation." Unfortunately,

          5  for families that don't work through a facilitated

          6  enroller, I don't know if they have that same

          7  benefit of the doubt of being on a case- by- case

          8  basis and I think there is a barrier to having to

          9  document your income, for sure.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: Now we do

         11  have recertification and you said that the time that

         12  one has to do it is what, you said 14 days,

         13  something like that?  So if one does not provide the

         14  paystub or is asked and did not provide it, even

         15  though there are many other ways we can find out if

         16  there is really any great income for this person,

         17  you check, the government has ways of doing that

         18  with the social security number, why would you deny

         19  one coverage?

         20                 MS. SERAFI: I couldn't agree with you

         21  more.  I think that when you say paystub you're

         22  actually being generous.  For the most part, it's

         23  four weeks of continuous pay, so you're talking

         24  about four paystubs or two paystubs.  So it's not

         25  only just one piece of document, now you're talking
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          2  about having to come in with a folder of multiple

          3  pieces and that is why we're strongly urging for the

          4  actual technological infrastructure to allow for the

          5  third party verification that you're talking about.

          6  Not only with Social Security Administration but

          7  also with the Wage Reporting System. Unfortunately,

          8  now, there's a little bit of a delay, there's a lag

          9  time so you're getting income that can go back

         10  upwards of six months, which is not necessarily

         11  relevant at the time and so what we were calling for

         12  is more increased technological infrastructure so

         13  that it can be behind the scenes, so it doesn't have

         14  to be the onus on the family but it can be the onus

         15  on HRA.  We do understand and I would ask if HRA

         16  would like to correct that, that would be fine, is

         17  that they verify it on their own anyway, that when a

         18  family applies for income, it's being checked in the

         19  back scenes anyway, so we would just ask that this

         20  be on the upfront and that the applicant does not

         21  have to submit those documents.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: And would

         23  recommend that if, there are a number of folks who

         24  does work maybe they may get a work job this week

         25  but they might not get a job next week.  So in 14
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          2  days they might not have enough stubs.  So you're

          3  saying four consecutive paystubs.  Why not four

          4  paystubs for the year?

          5                 MS. SERAFI: No.  It has to be, and

          6  actually this is a state law, that it has to be

          7  within, the documents are considered stale if they

          8  are more than three months old and so they cannot

          9  present documents that are that old.  And so, it was

         10  written into state law.  I appreciate, and I agree,

         11  that's why I testified, but we need to change this

         12  law for sure.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: All right.

         14  Thank you.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA: Thank you very

         16  much, Council Member, and thank you very much for

         17  your testimony.  The administration is here and,

         18  obviously, we're going to look at your

         19  recommendations as well.

         20                 MS. SERAFI: Thank you so much.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA: Thank you.  I see

         22  no one to testify.  This meeting is adjourned.

         23  Thank you very much, ladies and gentlemen.

         24                 (Hearing concluded at 12:10 p.m.)
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